
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Social & 
Economic 
Development 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Friday, 3rd December, 2004 

Time: 10.00 a.m. 

Place: Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Members' Services, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford 
Tel:01432 260460 Fax:01432 260286 

e-mail: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Social & Economic 
Development Scrutiny Committee 

 
To:       Councillor 

Councillor 
 

 
A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
J. Stone (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors H. Bramer, M.R. Cunningham, Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels, 
J.G.S. Guthrie, B. Hunt, D.C. Taylor, P.G. Turpin and 
A.L. Williams 

  
Co-opted Members Ms. C. Jones (Chamber of Commerce), G. Jones (Tourism 

Sector), Mrs. E. Newman (HALC) and Mr. P. Thomas 
(Herefordshire NFU) 

  
  
  
 Pages 
  

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     

 To receive apologies for absence.  

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     

 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 
in place of a Member of the Committee. 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 
the Agenda. 

 

4. MINUTES   1 - 20  

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 24th September, 
2004. 

 

5. POLICY AND COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE 2004/05 FIRST SIX 
MONTHS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS   

21 - 30  

 To inform Members of the performance of the non-corporate functions of 
the policy and Community Directorate against their national and local 
performance indicators for the first six months of 2004/05.  To outline the 
key service issues arising during the period and detail the main areas of 
activity undertaken by those services during the two months since the last 
report. 

 

6. YOUTH SERVICE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS   31 - 32  

 To update Members on the under performance of the Community Youth 
Service against the four key performance indicators set by the DfES. 

 

7. FUTURE USE OF LIBRARIES     

 To discuss with the Library Users Group the future use of libraries.  



 

8. UPDATE FROM THE COURTYARD REVIEW GROUP     

 To receive an oral update from the Courtyard Review Group.  

9. MONITORING OF 2004/2005 REVENUE BUDGETS FOR SOCIAL, 
COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME AREAS 
PERIOD 1-7   

33 - 38  

 To advise Members of the actual net revenue expenditure against budget 
for the Social, Community and Economic Development programme areas 
to period 7 of the financial year 2004-2005. 

 

10. STAFFING NUMBERS WITHIN THE POLICY AND COMMUNITY 
DIRECTORATE   

39 - 44  

 To advise Members of the staffing numbers within the Policy and 
Community Directorate as at 1st October 2004.  This report also includes 
staff not necessiarily within the remit of Social and Economic Development. 

 

11. HEREFORDSHIRE PLAN AMBITION GROUPS   45 - 50  

 To consider recent progress in relation to the Herefordshire Plan Ambitions 
relevant to the Policy and Community Directorate. 

 

12. BEST VALUE REVIEW OF TOURISM SERVICES   51 - 78  

 To receive an update on the Best Value Review Improvement Plan for 
Tourism Services. 

 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Education, 
Environment, Health, Social Care and Housing and Social and Economic 
Development.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises Policy and 
Finance matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions before 

and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised by 

the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information on 
your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 
 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print or tape.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover 
of this agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to 
deal with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is 
accessible for visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are 
available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 



 

 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Social & Economic 
Development Scrutiny Committee held at Brockington, 
35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Friday, 24th September, 
2004 at 10.00 a.m. 

Present: Councillor A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
Councillor J. Stone (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors:

Co-opted:

Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels, J.G.S. Guthrie, D.C. Taylor, P.G. Turpin and 
A.L. Williams 

Mr. G. Jones and Mrs. E. Newman 

In attendance: Councillor G.V. Hyde (Cabinet Member – Economic 
Development, Markets and Property), Councillor J.C. Mayson 
(Cabinet Member – Rural Regeneration and Smallholdings) 
and Councillor R.V. Stockton (Cabinet Member – Community 
and Social Development)

11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

 Apologies were received from Councillors H. Bramer, M.R. Cunningham, B. 
Hunt and J. Stone.

12. NAMED SUBSTITUTES

 There were no named substitutes.

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

 There were no declarations of interest.

14. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes for the meeting held on 11th June 2004, be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

15. REPORT BY CABINET MEMBER - RURAL REGENERATION AND 
SMALLHOLDINGS

 The Cabinet Member (Rural Regeneration and Smallholdings) reported on his 
programme area. 

Councillor Mayson paid tribute to the considerable amount of work and 
assistance provided to him when completing complex funding applications 
which had allowed the Council to considerably ‘punch above its weight’ in terms 
of grants received.  Members were informed that 21 full-time equivalent (FTE) 
jobs were supported by such grants, with only a small contribution from the 
Council.

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



Members were informed that an audit trail was required to receive any grant 
from Advantage West Midlands (AWM) necessitating much work from officers.  
Concerned by the amount of time it took to process applications the Director of 
Policy and Community had met with AWM representatives to discuss ways to 
simplify the grant application process. 

The Director of Policy and Community commented that the majority of funding 
received from agencies such as AWM was now capital and not revenue.  
Officers were discussing with AWM ways in which the Council could work 
around this. 

Councillor Mayson commented that the outcome of the Haskins Review on 
‘Modernising Rural Delivery’ was likely to have an impact in simplifying the 
grant application process for rural areas. 

Mrs. Newman (Herefordshire Association of Local Council’s (HALC) Co-opted 
Member) informed the Committee that through her status as a member of the 
English Rural Networks Panel she had been nominated to sit on the Rural 
Panel.   One of the roles of the Rural Panel was to scrutinise AWM.   Mrs. 
Newman therefore invited Members to channel any questions or issues 
regarding AWM to her so she could raise them at future meetings of the Panel. 

The Chairman thanked Councillor Mayson for his report and the Committee 
congratulated him on his handling of smallholdings issues in the County.

16. REPORT BY CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL 
DEVELOPMENT

 The Cabinet Member (Community and Social Development) reported on his 
programme area, a report on which was made available at the meeting as set 
out at Appendix 1 to these minutes. 

Following the Cabinet Member’s presentation discussion took place concerning 
the Community Building Grants Scheme.  It was noted that the scheme 
required Community Groups to fund a proportion of the cost of their individual 
schemes from their own resources.  It was confirmed that grants were only 
made after  rigorous scrutiny of their accounts. 

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for his comprehensive report to the 
Committee.

17. REPORT BY CABINET MEMBER - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, MARKETS 
AND PROPERTY 

 The Cabinet Member (Economic Development, Markets and Property) reported 
on his programme area a report on which was made available at the meeting as 
set out at Appendix 2 to these minutes. 

Following the Cabinet Member’s presentation discussion took place concerning 
the possibility of pedestrianising Hereford City Centre.  The Committee was 
informed that this idea was at an embryonic stage and much consultation with 
affected groups would need to take place before any decision could be made.  
The final decision would be the responsibility of the Cabinet Member (Highways 

2



and Transportation). 

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for his report to the Committee.

18. SICKNESS ABSENCE

 The Committee was updated on sickness absence and other matters for the 
Policy and Community Directorate for the year 1st August 2003 - 31st July 
2004.

The Director of Policy and Community reported that there had been a reduction 
in the number of days lost per full-time equivalent employee and that the 
number of days lost was still less than the current number of overall days lost 
per employee by the Council as a whole.

The Policy and Community Directorate still showed a high level of staff 
turnover. Members were informed that this was because some members of 
staff performed more than one role.  And as members of staff left, each post 
was counted separately, hence the actual levers are less than those recorded. 

Concern was expressed regarding the high number of stress related absences 
and whether this could be linked to the current situation regarding ‘Job 
Evaluation’.  The Director of Policy and Community commented that the stress 
related absences were generally related to a diverse number of personal 
issues.  She reported that, when considered necessary, the Council offered a 
counselling service to all its employees. 

The Director informed the Committee that while exit interviews were carried out 
this was not done comprehensively.  She also reminded Members that the 
Human Resources function was monitored by the Strategic Monitoring 
Committee.

RESOLVED: THAT the report be noted. 

19. POLICY AND COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE 2004/05 FIRST FOUR MONTHS 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

 Members were informed of the performance of the non-corporate functions of 
the Policy and Community Directorate against their national and local 
performance indicators for the first four months of 2004/05.  The report outlined 
the key areas of activity undertaken by each service for this year and detailed 
the main areas of activity undertaken by those services during the first four 
months of 2004/05. 

Comments on a number of areas identified in the report for improvement had 
been referred to earlier in the meeting by the Cabinet Members. 

RESOLVED: THAT the Directorate’s first four months, 2004/05 
performance indicator information be noted. 

3



20. HEREFORD CITY - ECONOMIC SITUATION

 The Committee received an update on the economic situation in Hereford City. 

The Head of Community and Economic Development reported that since 
consideration of the issue by the Committee in January and February 2004 a 
significant amount of progress had been made in taking forward issues to 
address the future health and vitality of the City.  This progress was outlined in 
the report. 

Members were also informed that the approved Asda development in Hereford 
was proceeding, with meetings planned with architects due within the next 
month.

RESOLVED: THAT the contents of the report be noted. 

21. CREATIVE INDUSTRIES AND TOURISM ENTERPRISE PROGRAMMES

 The Committee was updated on the Creative Industries and Tourism Enterprise 
programmes that were due to finish in March 2005.

The Cultural Services Manager informed Members that the Tourism Enterprise 
and Creative Industries programmes in Herefordshire were primarily funded by 
three-year grants, sourced regionally and from the European Union.  Both 
programmes had had a significant impact on these two sectors and the wider 
County economy.  The programmes had been entered into on the 
understanding that further funding may not be forthcoming and were therefore 
seen as stepping-stones to further development. 

The Committee was informed that proposals had been made to secure funding 
through Advantage West Midlands (AWM) via the Rural Regeneration Zone 
(RRZ); however, AWM’s current emphasis was on capital projects rather than 
revenue projects. 

The Cultural Services Manager reported that if RRZ funding was not 
forthcoming for tourism, expenditure would drop from the current average of 
£500,000 per year to the sum of £100,000 provided from the Council’s own 
budget plus possible contributions from the private sector.  Tourism was worth 
£272 million a year to the County with 800 directly supported jobs.  However, 
Herefordshire was the least successful destination in the West Midlands in 
terms of visitor spend.  Appendix 1 to the report outlined which programmes 
would be able to continue on the reduced budget. 

The Creative Industries programme was also set to see its budget vastly 
reduced from approximately £450,000 to £30,000 as external funding dropped 
out.  It was reported that the Arts Council was interested in supporting this 
programme area.  However, this would still require a large number of initiatives 
to be dropped unless RRZ funding was to be forthcoming.  Appendix 2 to the 
report outlined which programmes would be able to continue on a reduced 
budget.

The Cultural Services Manager expressed concern that even if funding could be 
secured it would arrive too late to secure the long-term futures of staff on fixed 
term contracts. 

4



RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report be noted. 

22. 2004 RURAL STRATEGY

 The Committee was updated on the recent Rural Strategy published by the 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) in July 2004. 

The Policy and Commissioning Manager informed Members that the new Rural 
Strategy had been published following the recommendations of the Haskins 
Report on Modernising Rural Delivery.  The revised strategy set out future 
policy direction for rural services.  A number of significant recommendations 
were outlined in the strategy, including: 

• The move to a smaller and more focused Countryside Agency 

• The development of an Integrated Land Use Agency, pulling together the 
remit of the Countryside Agency, English Nature and the Rural 
Development service. 

• A greater divide between policy development and delivery. 

• Devolving rural delivery to the regional and local level. 

• The rationalisation of rural funding streams from 100 current schemes to 3 
major funding programmes. 

From the West Midlands region, Shropshire County Council had been selected 
to be the pathfinder area.

The Committee was disappointed that Herefordshire had not been chosen as 
the regional pathfinder area but hoped to gain valuable feedback from 
Shropshire County Council as their pathfinder approach was developed and 
implemented.

RESOLVED: THAT the report be noted. 

23. PROPOSED COURTYARD THEATRE REVIEW GROUP

 The Committee considered undertaking a Scrutiny Review into the funding 
arrangements of the Courtyard Theatre. 

Members discussed the draft scoping statement for the review, including the 
proposed terms of reference as attached at Appendix 1 of the report. 

RESOLVED:

THAT (a)  a review  of  the  funding  arrangements  of  the  Courtyard 
Theatre be undertaken and the scoping statement as attached 
at Appendix 1 to the report be approved; 

(b) Councillors H. Bramer, Mrs S.P.A. Daniels, J.G.S. Guthrie and J. 

5



Stone be appointed to serve on the Courtyard Theatre Review 
Group; and 

(c) Councillor J. Stone be appointed as Chairman of the Courtyard 
Theatre Review Group. 

24. MONITORING OF 2004/2005 REVENUE BUDGETS FOR SOCIAL, 
COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME AREAS 
PERIOD 1-5

 The Committee was advised of the actual net revenue expenditure against 
budget for the Social, Community and Economic Development programme 
areas to period 5 of the financial year 2004-2005. 

The Principal Accountancy Manager presented the report, a detailed monitoring 
report was attached at Appendix 1.  The report showed the revised budget, 
including carried forward over and underspends from 2003/04 with actual 
performance, variances and projected out-turns for the main service areas 
within Social, Community and Economic Development. 

The Principal Accountancy Manager identified three service areas with 
variances, these were: 

• Parks and Countryside – the overspend of £161,000 incurred during 
2003/04 had been written off against the commuted sums reserve.  For 
2004-2005 an extra £79,000 had been allocated to the service, however, it 
was unlikely that this would fully address the budget shortfall.

• The Youth Service underspend continued due to problems with staff 
recruitment.  This also impacted on operational budgets in the current year 
as the reduced staff numbers led to uncompleted projects. 

• The Director of Policy and Community reported the Youth Service was 
proving to be a very difficult area to recruit in and that was a national 
problem.  A Government Green Paper on the future of the service was 
expected to be published shortly. 

• The Leisure Services Contract’s also showed a deficit due to unanticipated 
maintenance costs during the year.  A recovery plan had now been put in 
place to enable the deficit to be reduced in full over the next 2 to 3 years. 

RESOLVED: THAT the position be noted. 

25. FESTIVALS REVIEW - PROGRESS REPORT

 Further to its recent review of festivals, the Committee received a report on 
progress following this year’s festivals. 

The Chairman read a short statement on the Ross International Festival: 

“The Ross International Festival brought something very special and 
unique to Herefordshire which makes it extremely sad to hear that it has 

6



become insolvent. 

We’ve worked with the organisers for a number of years to support the 
Festival and only last year agreed a three-year funding package to give 
it some kind of financial stability, at least in the medium term. 

Herefordshire has a fine tradition of festivals which appeal to all sections 
of the community and adds to the vibrancy and cultural diversity of the 
County.

The Ross-on-Wye International Festival was well loved by many people 
and had become a key element to the county’s cultural calendar.” 

The Cultural Services Manager informed the Committee that the Ross 
International Festival was due to meet its creditors and that she was unable to 
comment further at this time.  The Herefordshire Photography Festival was 
currently taking place and she hoped it would be a successful festival.  It had 
not been Herefordshire’s turn to host the Three Choirs Festival this year. 

Members were informed that the Leominster Festival had reported a 9% 
increase in ticket sales and had been attended by 2,500 people despite being a 
very small and self-contained festival.  The Cabinet Member  (Community and 
Social Development) congratulated the organisers of the Leominster Festival 
and echoed its call for new, younger volunteers to aid the organisers so that the 
festival could build on its current success. 

An Annual Review of the Ledbury Poetry Festival was due later in the year but 
it was already estimated that 5,000 people had attended this year’s festival.  
The Festival had learnt from previous years and it no longer overlapped events 
in order to increase attendances.  The Cultural Services Manager repeated that 
the Ledbury Poetry Festival still wished to enter into a Service Level Agreement 
with the Council for the festival in order for it to increase its financial stability 
and aid its  planning. 

The Cabinet Member (Community and Social Development) reported 
Herefordshire’s success in ‘Britain In Bloom’ and the Committee congratulated 
its local organisers. 

RESOLVED: THAT the position of the County’s Festivals be noted. 

26. POSITION STATEMENT  ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CROW ACT 2000 
(RESPONSIBILITY WITHIN SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO)

 The Committee was advised on the current position on the Countryside Rights 
of Way Act 2000 (CRoW) in respect of service responsibility within the Social 
Development portfolio area. 

The Countryside and Leisure Development Manager reported that the CRoW 
Act was a complex piece of legislation and that responsibilities under the Act 
fell across two Directorates (Environment and Policy and Community).

In relation to conservation and wildlife, he reported that those sites directly 
managed within the Parks and Countryside Service, were deemed stable with 
management regimes that were likely to lead to progressive enhancements of 

7



both species and habitats. 

In relation to Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), he reported that the 
Council’s obligations with respect to the production, adoption and publication of 
the statutory AONB Management Plans had been successfully met in full. 

He further reported that a project to survey newly designated access land and 
those Section 9 Commons which fell into Council ownership within the next two 
years had been initiated.  This exercise also incorporated conservation and 
wildlife assessments.  When the work was completed it would form the basis of 
a report to Cabinet on the Council’s newly acquired legal and property 
obligations and provide options for the resourcing framework that would be 
required to discharge the Council’s duties. 

The Countryside and Leisure Development Manager reported that Leaders 
briefings on the further implications of the Act were being prepared for the 
autumn.

RESOLVED:

THAT (a) the report be noted; 

and

(b) the Committee be advised of future developments following the 
proposed Leaders briefing on corporate progress. 

The meeting ended at 11.47 a.m. CHAIRMAN

8



APPENDIX 1 

ANNUAL REPORT BY CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITY AND 
SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Wards Affected 

 County Wide 

Purpose

1. The Cabinet Member reported as follows on the progress and achievements within 
the area of Community and Social Development and the challenges of the 
forthcoming year. 

Achievements & Challenges 

 Adult and Community Learning

 The Lifelong Learning Development Unit (LLDU) restructure is now implemented. 
This was initiated following the Adult Learning Inspection (ALI) of January 2003. A 
Quality Assurance framework will now apply to all courses and provision from the 
start of the autumn term. 

The ALI will be reinspecting the Council’s Adult and Community Learning service in 
the week commencing December 6th 2004. LLDU has been working to address the 
weaknesses identified in the previous inspection and has received a number of 
monitoring visits from the designated lead inspector. The indications are that the 
LLDU is making satisfactory progress in addressing these weaknesses and is 
hopeful of a satisfactory outcome in December.

During the previous academic year a total of 550 learners were enrolled on a variety 
of courses. The LLDU has recently accessed £415,818 of European Social Funds, 
which is available to spend over the period September 2004 to December 2006. This 
more than doubles the amount of money to support courses and activities and will be 
spent in bring learning opportunities to disadvantaged communities within the county. 

Herefordshire Learning Partnership

The Herefordshire Learning Partnership acts as the ambition group for the 
Herefordshire Partnership. During the past year it has implemented a review and has 
been relaunched to make it a more effective forum for bringing together organisations 
representing learning across all age groups and sectors. 

It has developed a three-year development, and one-year business plan and has 
received funding from the LSC to support staff involved in implementing these plans. 

Key activities this year have been the management of a mapping exercise to identify 
what adult and community provision exist, and where; the production of ‘Learning 
Link’ the Learning partnership newsletter; a Rural Learning Conference and a 

MINUTE ITEM 16

19



APPENDIX 1 

successful 1st stage submission to European Social Funding for the ‘Teddy Bear’ 
transnational project. 

The Learning Partnership is currently being consulted by Learning and Skills 
Council’s as part of its Strategic Area Review (StAR). The implementation of the 
proposals arising out of this process will present the biggest challenge over the next 
year for the Learning Partnership and its constituent organisations. 

Voluntary Sector Review

Over 30 structured interviews have been held with Council officers and 
representatives of the voluntary sector infrastructure organisations.  The 
programme of interviews should be concluded by the end of the month.  The 
review has involved a major benchmarking exercise, and is expected to be 
completed towards the end of October. 

Community Buildings Grant Scheme

Under the scheme grants of up to £15,000 are available for Community Buildings 
across Herefordshire to assist with:

• Work that is needed in order to comply with legal requirements (such as disability 
access or for Public Entertainment Licences) 

• Extensions that allow additional activity 

• Extensions that aid the expansion of an existing activity.

Grants of up to £500 are available to assist towards the cost of feasibility studies. 

A total of £56,751 was distributed among eight community facilities across the county 
through last years Community Buildings grant scheme.  A further £14,858 was 
awarded from the 04/05 due to the quality of applications received: See Appendix 1 
for details 

The closing date for applications for 04/05 Community Building’s scheme is Friday 
26th November 2004.  Applicants will be informed of Herefordshire Council’s decision 
by Friday 4th February 2005. 

Voluntary Sector Grant Scheme 2004

The budget for voluntary sector grants for 2004/2005 was £165,000

The closing date for the 1st round of applications was the 9th January 2004 and 30 
applications were received.  The funding requested in this round amounted to 
£415,840.00. A total of £143,971 was allocated during the 1st round.

An unclaimed grant of £3,075.00 has been returned to the pot, leaving a total of 
£24,164 to be distributed in the 2nd round. 

The closing date for the 2nd round of applications was the 31st March 2004 and 26 
applications were received.  These funding requests amounted to £109,898.25. A 
total of £24,655 was allocated during the 2nd round.  See appendix 2 for details. 

210



APPENDIX 1 

External Liaison – Achievements 

• The Herefordshire Youth Games, organised by the Sports Development Team 
and held in July 2004, involved 23 schools and over 500 children in a hectic day 
of competition.  Sports included football, rounders, tennis, tag rugby, orienteering, 
cricket and new age curling.  This is the fourth annual Games organised for local 
schools.

• The Sports Development Team has been successful in attracting a grant in 
excess of £100,000 from Sport England and Big Lottery Fund’s joint Active 
England Programme.  The South Herefordshire Activity Promotion and Education 
Scheme (SHAPES) will provide a diverse range of activity sessions over the next 
three years, and will also provide training and mentoring opportunities for people 
who wish to know more about health, fitness and exercise.  There will be 
opportunities for Herefordshire residents to gain recognised qualifications, and 
the Coordinator will work with community groups to identify what activities people 
would like to see in their local area.

• The Herefordshire Community Safety & Drugs Partnership carried out their three-
year audit and public consultation in August 2004.  Attendance by the public was 
very high and some excellent feedback received.  The Partnership will be holding 
their conference, as part of this audit process, in November. 

• Three Race Equality awareness sessions have been organised for the end of 
September, and all places taken up, from both Council staff and partner 
organisations.

• The Sports Referral Project which commenced in June is gaining momentum, 
with initial uptake very positive.  The target group are those who are at risk of 
problematic drug use, as evidence suggests that participation in sport can make a 
positive contribution towards reduction in crime, disorder and anti-social 
behaviour.  Many clients are already becoming engaged with local clubs, and 
taking part in activities from fishing to karate. 

• In April 2004, the Leisure Development Group, facilitated by External Liaison, 
successfully negotiated a reduced pricing policy for carers accompanying an 
individual to an activity at Halo leisure facilities.  Through discussion and 
partnership working, the group agreed with Halo a definition for a carer.  They 
impressed upon Halo the benefits to numerous individuals and to their own 
business of offering a concession to those supporting someone who would not be 
able to access that activity without their support. 

Challenges

• Funding for the Children’s Rights & Advocacy Services continues to be a 
challenge.  The service currently extends only to children in the looked-after 
system, with virtually no funding available for development or project work.  
Minimal funding is secured until 2006 through an SLA with Connexions, Social 
Services and Education, however External Liaison is currently appealing to the 
Corporate Parent Group for support in finding core funding to put the service on a 
secure footing. 

• As the team continues to expand, there may be issues around accommodation.  
Despite new, externally funded posts allowing for accommodation, IT and 

311



APPENDIX 1 

telephone charges in their budgets, allocation of desk space within Plough Lane 
is uncertain.  Such uncertainty in itself may delay the recruitment process. 

• A Criminal Justice Intervention Programme (CJIP) Coordinator has been 
successfully recruited to the External Liaison team.  The challenges facing him in 
the next twelve months include recruiting two members of staff, sourcing suitable 
office accommodation and establishing inter-agency working protocols. 

• The part-time Girls’ & Women’s Football Development Coordinator is currently 
contracted only until the end of March 2005.  Without someone in post, 
opportunities for Herefordshire women in football are scarce, as are the benefits 
that accompany participation in a team sport and physical activity.  Funding 
applications are currently being developed to enable the post to continue on a 
full-time basis. 

Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development - Achievements

• The refurbishment of nine fitness suites with major financial benefits accruing 
from a robust procurement process. 

• The award of Woodland Grant Schemes and Certification for Council Managed 
Woodlands.

• 10 year Management Plan approved for Queenswood. 

• Significant progress with Aylestone Park project inculding £100k commuted sum 
secured via Planning Policy. 

• Very good Lottery Inspection Reports for Ledbury Leisure facilities. 

• Improved Quest Assessment scores for all inspected leisure sites. 

• Updated for best ever results on Britain in Bloom entrants across the County. 

Challenges

• Continuing deficit budget position on Grounds Maintenance. 

• Resourcing CPO of Belmont land. 

• Resourcing future obligations under Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) 
Act 2000. 

• Continuing pressure to provide incremental support to In Bloom Initiative. 

• Restructuring of Halo asset base. 

Cultural Services - Achievements

H.Art week taking place between 11-19 September.  A showcase of visual arts and 
crafts produced throughout the county.  Includes 34 exhibitions and special events; 
47 open studios; 11 gallery shows.

412



APPENDIX 1 

Herefordshire Walking Festival – June, with over 60 different walks, and over 1300 
walkers.  Compared to last year there was a significant increase in the number of 
booked places despite the weather not being favourable.  31% of walkers were from 
a non-Herefordshire postcode, with the visitor from furthest away coming from 
Barbados.

Capital improvements at the Record Office, specifically catering for visitors with 
disabilities.  The final stage of the work is the disabled toilet which is due to be in 
place for the launch of the improvements on the 30th September - the eve of the 
implementation of the Disability Discrimination Act.

Herefordshire Cultural Strategy – produced and well received as an easy to follow 
and attractive document.  To accompany this document is advice to organisations 
and groups running cultural projects on how to measure the difference initiatives 
make.

Friar Street – building work started with the support of Heritage Lottery money to 
create a “state of the art” store for objects and to increase access to the artifices.  3rd

Phase lottery application submitted for education resource and final development. 

Village Art Markers – Arts Team received Lottery funding for a project in villages to 
work with an archivist and artist to create distinctive sign / public art for the area. 

Youth Arts Charter – working with a number of partner organisations to develop a 
charter for working with young people.  Nearing final completion. 

Archaeology Week – Heritage Services run a series of events throughout the week 
which were very well received. 

Public Art – consultation to the public on Rotherwas public art project. 

Coming up – Hereford Contemporary Crafts Fair, Open Day at the Record Office; 
User Group Consultation at the Record Office; Flavours Awards Ceremony; 
Establishment of a Cultural Ambassador Scheme; Winter Walking Festival; Autumn 
Tourism Forum.

Challenges

Uncertainty over external funding for Creative Industries, Tourism Enterprise and the 
final phase of Friar Street.  Applications or proposals currently submitted.

Income from TIC centres facing challenges e.g. reduction of commission on bus 
passes.

As non-statutory service vulnerable to budget reduction. 

Not enough space at the Record Office to hold new archives.

Customer Services, Libraries and Information – achievements

• Opened Bromyard Centre (Jan 04) 

• Extended opening hours at libraries 

• New INFO point at Garrick House 

513



APPENDIX 1 

• Training and Development Programme 

• Long – Service presentation and recognition 

• Agreement on future for Kington Library and INFO point 

• Conservation plan for St Katherines, Ledbury 

• On-line reservation system set up 

• Free reservations policy being implemented. 

Challenges

• Vision and funds for Hereford 

• Re-structure and organisational change for 150 staff 

• Implementing career programme 

• Efficiency savings to meet budget target 

• Delivery of multi access to services at Libraries and INFO 

• Diversity impact requirements 

• Meeting compliance with DD Act 

• Improvement corporately in call handling 

• Rural service, Revised mobile services, community Access Points 

Community Youth Service – Achievements

• Move from Bromyard Youth Centre in to new premises in Bromyard Centre 

• Refurbishment and re opening of Ledbury Youth Centre 

• Busiest ever summer programme at Bodenham Sailing Centre, with new fully accessible 
boats and facilities for young people with disabilities. 

• Expansion of Duke of Edinburgh Award scheme to all High Schools 

• Achieved full funding programme for Ross Creative Learning Centre (we now have to 
deliver it) 

• New Roots programme – wide range of music activities and development across 
Herefordshire delivered in part through the youth service 

• Successful partnership with Rural Media to deliver the Youth Times programme and 
Insite on line magazine (youth portal / gateway) 

614



APPENDIX 1 

• 3 new trainee youth workers appointed (to address skills and workforce shortage) 

• Hinton Youth Centre refurbishment funding has been achieved in partnership with local 
residents association. 

• Dinedor Youth Camp has been successfully passed to the newly established 
Herefordshire Outdoor Trust (HOT) who have received their major grant from the Lottery. 

Not so well

• Not currently on track to achieve 4 Key targets set by DfES 

• Recruitment

Future challenges

• Recruitment, Recruitment, Recruitment (still on 12% vacancy rate) 

• Achieving new quality standards and targets as set by DfES (we are not currently on 
track)

• Ofsted / JAR (Joint Area Review - pilot inspection for all Children’s Services) inspection 
probably due in 2005 

• Children’s Services / Children’s Bill changes to structure of organisations delivering to 
young people. 

Directorate Support Unit 

Achievements

• DSU co-ordination of Directorate office re-locations to Plough Lane. 

• Appointment of new Directorate Facilities Officer to manage Modern Records Unit and to 
lead on GEM, Health & Safety, Data Protection, Freedom of Information, etc. across the 
Directorate.

• Revised newsletter format for Performance Reports to Scrutiny. 

Challenges

• FOI implementation 

• P&C Support Services review outcome/implementation, etc.

715



816



Appendix 2 

ANNUAL REPORT BY CABINET MEMBER – ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT, MARKETS AND PROPERTY

Progress during the year 

Twyford Court Units, Rotherwas 
New units at Twyford Court, Rotherwas were declared open on Friday, 25 
June 2004.  The completion of the six new units and associated roads is one 
of the first completed projects funded with Rural Regeneration Zone funding in 
this area.  The units have taken six months to construct and cost around £1.3 
million with funding coming from Advantage West Midlands, Objective 2 
European Regional Development Fund and Herefordshire Council. 

New Internal Estate Roads, Rotherwas 
Two new internal roads have been completed utilising AWM funds on 
Rotherwas linking Holme Lacy Road to Netherwood road and a further link 
from Netherwood Road to Southern Magazine site.  These roads will allow the 
Southern Magazine site to be developed once the Rotherwas Access Road 
has been constructed. 

Rotherwas Business Centre 
Planning permission has been secured for the Rotherwas Business Centre 
which will include 14 offices and 10 light workshop units.  Work is continuing 
to try to put together a funding package for the scheme. 

Opening of the Leominster Industrial Estate Access Road 
The newly completed Leominster Industrial Estate Access Road was officially 
opened by Tony McNulty MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State at the 
Department for Transport on Thursday, 9th September 2004.  This £5 million 
scheme will open up 30 acres of new employment land on the Leominster 
Enterprise Park which should help to create up to 500 new jobs. 

Rotherwas Access Road 
The Council has successfully secured planning permission for this scheme 
and is now working to secure the funding to enable the scheme to proceed at 
the earliest possible opportunity.  In March 2004 the Council took a delegation 
to the Minister, Tony McNulty MP to press the case for funding for the 
scheme.  An application for funding for the scheme has subsequently been 
submitted to the Department of Transport and a decision is anticipated during 
December of this year.  A petition in support of the scheme is currently being 
put together and it is anticipated that a further local delegation will go to see 
the Minister to promote the scheme at the end of October. 

Edgar Street Grid 
The Council and Advantage West Midlands are continuing to develop 
proposals for the 100 acre Edgar Street Grid site to the north of the existing 
historic City Centre.  The Council has adopted a Masterplan for the site and 
key proposals have been integrated into the Herefordshire Unitary 

MINUTE ITEM 17

917



Development Plan.  The Council and Advantage West Midlands are working 
together to establish a Joint Venture Company to take the proposals forward 
to implementation.  Work is commencing on site acquisition and an early task 
for the Joint Venture Company will be the selection of appropriate private 
sector development partners. 

City of Living Crafts 
The Council has continued to develop projects in the City Centre as part of 
the City of Living Crafts Programme. 

Council’s Capital Programme - The Council has approved approximately 
£1 million in its capital programme, for a range of City Centre 
Enhancements over the next few years.  Schemes included are Eign Gate 
refurbishment, Shop Front Grant Scheme, Initial works on High Town/High 
Street and Victoria Footbridge refurbishment. 

Eign Gate Refurbishment - The Council has commissioned options for 
the refurbishment of Eign Gate which will go out to public consultation in 
the Autumn of this year with a view to being implemented early in 2005.

Hereford Cathedral - The Council is working with the Cathedral to 
develop a Heritage Lottery bid for the Regeneration of Cathedral Close 
and associated Cathedral buildings.  A Project Planning Grant has been 
secured with a view to submitting a full bid for Heritage Lottery funding 
later this year. In the interim, a schedule of remedial works has been 
completed in the Cathedral Close.  New turf and top soil has been laid, 
improvements have been made to the surfacing of the paths and pot holes 
have been filled. 

Castle Green - The Council has commenced work on putting together a 
team to develop a Heritage Lottery bid for a major refurbishment of Castle 
Green and its environs. 

City Partnership 
Cynthia Spaull has now been appointed by the Hereford City Partnership as 
the new Hereford City Manager.  She is already working on a range of 
initiatives which should support the health and vitality of the City. 

South Wye SRB Programme 
The South Wye SRB Programme continues to perform well with £2.6 million 
of SRB money being drawn down attracting over £5 million of other funding 
and 30 Projects are currently being supported.  The highlight of the year as 
always being the South Wye Big Event on the 4th September 2004.  We are 
continuing to work with the Partnership and AWM to try to identify a 
sustainable way forward once the current SRB Programme comes to an end 
in 2006. 

• Overall relationships have been built with key partners in South Wye, i.e. 
Asda and George Wimpey, in order to best benefit the local community.

1018



• 600 people have volunteered and 2 community facilities have been 
completed.  A further 2 are underway this year. 

• Police reported a significant reduction in crime during the period. 

• Over 9,000 people attended the Big Event 

• The programme has spent £2,614,908 SRB funding to date and attracted 
£4,337,273 other public funds and £998,056 of private funds. 

• 30 projects are currently being supported. 

• The Promoting Positive Behaviour Project has reduced the need for fixed 
term exclusions at Hayward High School. 

• The South Wye literacy project has assisted 400 learners since 2001 

• A holiday scheme rune by the community development team provided 280 
places for children’s activities, which was booked up within 48hrs. 

Challenges for year ahead –

• The Programme entering its final stages of funding and is focusing on exit 
strategies this coming year.

• Each project has been asked to submit a forward plan detailing what 
happens when SRB funding ends in 2006, and the partnership is currently 
looking to purchase an asset which will provide an income stream and 
which will be of benefit to the local community.

• They are also in discussion with ASDA regarding community facilities on 
the new site as well as Health provision.

• The partnership are acutely aware that they need to identify additional 
sources of funding in order to continue with the work in South Wye, and the 
forward strategy group are working towards producing an action plan for 
the future of the programme. 

Development of new Economic Development Strategy 
During the year work has commenced on developing a new Economic 
Development Strategy for the County.  Consultants EDAW have been 
appointed to develop the Strategy guided by representatives of key 
organisations in the Herefordshire Partnership including the Council.  A series 
of consultation events were undertaken which involved Council Members, 
Herefordshire Partnership, Parish Councils and businesses.  Final work on 
the Strategy is now being completed and the new Strategy will be in place by 
the end of this year.  The work has provided a very useful analysis of the 
issues currently facing the County and will provide a framework for agreeing 
shared priorities to ensure the future economic health of the County. 

Visit by AWM Chairman – Nick Paul 
AWM continues to be an important funding partner for the Council in 
delivering its local economic development priorities.  Whilst the revenue 
position of AWM is currently constrained, their ability to invest in capital 
schemes is something we need to take full advantage of in Herefordshire.  We 
have continued to try to build effective working relationships with AWM at the 
highest level.  In May Herefordshire Council hosted a tour of the County for 
AWM Chairman Nick Paul and secured his support for key projects such as 
the Edgar Street Grid, Rotherwas Access Road and Leominster Access Road. 

1119



Challenges for the next year 
The challenges for the forthcoming year really relate to building on the 
progress we have made on the issues/projects summarised above.  Key 
priorities will continue to be taken forward in the Market Towns and Hereford 
City including Edgar Street Grid, Rotherwas Access Road, the development of 
Leominster Enterprise Park. 

The context for this activity will be the new Economic Development Strategy 
and the Herefordshire UDP will also play an important role in driving the 
allocation of the central employment land.  In particular there will be an 
opportunity to bring forward a new business park in Ross on Wye. 

1220



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY 3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE  
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Audrey Rust, Performance Management Officer on (01432) 261923 

PerformanceIndicators0.doc  

 POLICY AND COMMUNITY DIRECTORATE 2004/05 
FIRST SIX MONTHS’ PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Report By: Performance Management Officer 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide. 

Purpose 

1. To inform Members of the performance of the non-corporate functions of the Policy 
and Community Directorate against their national and local performance indicators 
for the first six months of 2004/05.  To outline the key service issues arising during 
the period and detail the main areas of activity undertaken by those services during 
the two months since the last report. 

Financial Implications 

2. All expenditure in respect of performance indicators / targets is from approved 
budgets. 

Considerations 

3. As reported previously, Service Managers across Policy and Community are 
providing information on sets of key local indicators for their services.  Information on 
those key local indicators, and any national Best Value indicators, where actual 
performance varies from the target significantly (more than plus or minus 10%) is 
detailed in Appendix 1. 

4. As previously, Members also have an overview of the wider performance of individual 
service areas, as each Service Manager has provided a brief narrative that 
summarises the key issues, activities and achievements of their service during the 
period of August to September 2004.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Directorate’s first six months’ 2004/05 performance indicator 
information be noted, subject to any comments which Members 
may wish to make.  

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified 

AGENDA ITEM 5

21



22



Quick Guide to this 
issue: 

Economic Investment and 
Development 

2

Community Youth Service 3

Community Regeneration 4

Herefordshire Partnership 
Support Services 

5

Cultural Services 6

Libraries 7

Directorate Support Unit 7

External Liaison (Sports 
Development) 

8

Incorporating Performance Indicators Outputs where ‘Exceptional’ 

Detailing: August & 
September, 2004 

Appendix 1 Service News 

Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development 

ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

Increased pressure on the Parks Team to provide greater support to the market towns 
for the ‘In Bloom’ competition. 

Another challenge that the Service tackled this summer was the world steel supply crisis, 
which caused major delays in the construction of the North Herefordshire Swimming 
Pool. 

October half term ‘Tree Spirits 
and Tree Dressing’ event 
attracted over 200 children 

The Service has recently managed the 
completion of the first phase of work on 
the Aylestone Park Project in partnership 
with the Aylestone Park Association.  The 
site now has mains services and work has 
begun on a new entrance road.  Tree and 
shrub planting is also planned to start the 
landscaping of the site during National 
Tree Week at the end of November. 

This summer there were record visitor 
numbers at Queenswood Country Park due 
to the summer programme of events and 
the on-going improvements at the site.  A 
partnership between the Service and the 
WildPlay Project of Herefordshire Nature 
Trust proved very popular with families, 
and the autumn ‘Tree Spirits and Tree 
Dressing’ event that was held during the 
October half term attracted more than 
200 children. 

Also, new health and safety measures 
were implemented at Queenswood in an 
attempt to tackle the dangers to visitors 
caused by vehicles using the road through 
the Country Park to access the private 
dwellings on the hill.  Four speed ramps 
accompanied by the appropriate signage,  
were installed to ensure the speed of 
these vehicles is reduced. 

New management plans were launched 
for both the Wye Valley and Malvern Hills 
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

(AONB) and the Service is currently in 
negotiation with the AONB’s to discuss 
how these will be implemented.   

A major achievement for the Service this 
summer was the three ‘Gold’ awards for 
the County in the National ‘Britain In 
Bloom’ Competition, with all of the Market 
Towns gaining an award. 

23



Economic Investment and Development 

Page 2 Service News 

Tony McNulty MP, Parliamentary 
Under Secretary of State at the 
Dept of Transport, opening the 
new link road to the A49 at 
Leominster. 

Work continued on infrastructure projects, 
providing a property, project development 
and general enquiry service, and 
managing the Start-Up and Redundant 
Building Grant schemes.   

The first two renovation projects funded by 
the Redundant Building Grant scheme 
were completed.  Walford Chapel near 
Leintwardine, a Victorian Primitive 
Methodist Chapel that had been lying 
empty and unused for many years, was 
refurbished and converted for office use.   
It now provides 96 sq metres of 
workspace with the potential to create six 
new jobs.  The second project to complete 
was the renovation of an old tinsmith’s 
building for Alex Clive Lighting in Ledbury.  
This old building, dating back to 1650, had 
also been derelict for a number of years. 

The new Business Directory was printed 
and distributed, with a copy going to all 
Council Members.  The Investment 
Newsletter was distributed to businesses 

with the Directory. 

The Leominster Access Road was officially 
opened in early September.   This new link-
road will  play a vital role in opening up the 
new 30-acre, £20million enterprise park, 
which is expected to create around 600 
jobs. 

Funding for the first City Centre project at 
Eign Gate was approved. The proposals, 
which include new paving, new street 
furniture, the creation of two café-style 
plazas and soft lighting, will boost the City 
Centre and rejuvenate the area.  Planning 
of the public consultation event on the 
project commenced.  

The Team's pages on the Council website 
were developed to include more 
information and provide additional links to 
other support organisations and relevant 
websites. 

Consultants provided an updated draft of 
the Economic Development Strategy which 
was distributed, analysed and reviewed by 
Team members. Related to this was work 
for the Business, Economic and Tourism 
Ambition Group to consider how the 
Strategy is to be managed in future.  
Management of the Strategy will include 
the monitoring of performance indicators 
to ensure that the Strategy is working; 
identifying projects which are not 
delivering the planned benefits; evaluating 
projects against the Strategy and 
supporting them or not; identifying areas 
where there are no projects contributing to 
p l a n n e d  i m p r o v e m e n t s  a n d 
commissioning new projects/activities. 

Main Activity & Key Achievements during August & September 2004 

ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

Completed projects involve post-project monitoring and the completion of final funding claims. This work can then be 
added to by unexpected issues.  The impact of these unexpected issues, which can be time-consuming to resolve, is 
that resources cannot be released to begin new project work as quickly as planned. 

One of the Service’s key aims this year is to improve its contact with businesses.  The achievement of this aim within 
the timescale is in jeopardy because of staffing changes.

Exceptional P.I. Performance 

The number of inward investment enquiries: this indicator is currently 
under-performing.  There were only 21 enquiries received from 
businesses interested in moving into Herefordshire at the half-year.  This 
is against the annual target of 110.  Actions to improve the desirability of 
Herefordshire for businesses will be formulated as part of the Economic 
Development Strategy work and are likely to include a more selective 
marketing campaign targeted at specific types of businesses.  

Number of hits received on Economic Development pages on Council's 
website: the site is continually being developed and updated with the 
addition of more information and links to other support organisations’ 
pages.  This has proved to be highly successful, and 1,407 hits have 
already been achieved against the annual target of 1,800. 

24



Exceptional P.I. Performance 

Unit delivery cost (number of individual young people reached 13—19 yr olds, divided by 
total youth service expenditure) Performance against this indicator is calculated at 
£614.37.  The target is £424.61.  The service is aware that it was unable to see 
satisfactory numbers of people during the first half of the year due to the high level of 
vacant youth worker posts.  However problems with the implementation of the new MIS 
system has compounded calculating a true output for this indicator, as the service is also 
aware that there was at the time of writing an ‘under-reporting’ of the number of ‘young 
people reached’ .  Steps are being taken to ensure that all youth worker statistics are 
brought up to date as quickly as possible.  

Contact Target: Percentage of the total youth population aged 13-19 (14,830 mid 2002 
figures) in contact with the youth service: Statistics available at time of writing were that 
only 627 young people had been in contact with the youth service.  The annual target is 
2,076.  The lack of youth workers for the first half of the year has affected the 
performance in this area but as described above, it is believed that at the half-year stage 
these figures were being under reported by youth workers due to difficulties with the new 
MIS system. 

Community Youth Service 

of Strength, Strategic Planning, and 
Policies and Procedures.  Youth work 
practice was deemed ‘good’ and admin 
support and partnerships both ‘contributed 
to the success of the service’. Areas 
identified for improvement were: Young 
people’s involvement in the strategic 
planning of the service, youth workers 
sharing best practice, links with schools, 
high staff vacancies, morale of the service 
and inadequate funding against NYA 
standards.  

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

An extensive recruitment drive - for twelve 
vacant posts was undertaken.  This was a 
successful process, with nine posts being 
filled.  The new post holders will take up 
their positions during the next reporting 
period.  Unfortunately, two of the 
remaining vacancies are key senior posts 
which are unlikely to be filled by another 
round of recruitment due to the salary on 
offer and the current national climate. 

The canoeing and sailing centres were very 
busy with new groups and activities 
developed by the new full-time Outdoor 
Education Officer; this included an 
increased take-up by schools groups.  

D of E groups carried out many 
expeditions in this period, including the 
first overnight expeditions on the River 
Wye for several years.  

Ross-on-Wye Youth Centre (The Y Zone) 
developed and delivered a new range of 
arts programmes, supported by the new 
team of staff at Ross-on-Wye. 

An internal inspection was carried out by 
the Extended Schools Officer; a separate 
report will be available shortly.  The three 
main themes of the inspection were: Areas 

Page 3 Appendix 1 

Canoeing and sailing—new groups and 
activities set up by the Outdoor Education 
Officer 

25



Community Regeneration 

Page 4 Service News 

‘Sealed Knot’ officially opening of 
the ‘Big Event’ with cannon fire. 

The customer satisfaction and monitoring 
exercise for the Service was completed 
and is now in the process of being 
analysed.  The results of this analysis will 
be reported in the next update. 

Acting upon the recommendations arising 
from the last survey, a Team Service 
information leaflet was printed and has 
been distributed to all INFO shops, 
libraries, CAB’s and Council offices across 
Herefordshire. 

The Leominster Area Regeneration 
Partnership’s Strategic Action Plan was 
approved by the Market Towns’ Task Force 
and the Partnership is currently in the 
process of developing a range of projects 
for a three-year Implementation Plan to 
secure funding commencing April 2005. 

An Executive Group of the Ledbury Area 
Partnership has engaged the services of a 
consultant to prepare a Strategic 
Implementation Plan that will identify key 
projects/prior it ies for continual 
regeneration activities post - MTI. 

The Ross-on-Wye Area Partnership is 
continuing to develop projects for inclusion 
in a ten-year Strategic Action Plan.  The 
Partnership is scheduled to present the 
plan to the Market Towns’ Task Force early 
in 2005. 

A mid-term review was completed for the 
Herefordshire Rivers Leader+ programme.  
The review considered the achievements 
of the programme to date, the success of 
management practices, and the future 
direction and priorities for 2005-2008. 

One of Kington’s MTI projects, the new 

skatepark, won an award from the West 
Midlands Arts Council, presented at the 
Action for Market Towns meeting in 
Alcester. 

In September, the South Wye Partnership 
held its annual ‘Big Event’ on King George 
IV Playing Field in Hereford.  This year was 
the best attended to date, with over 9,000 
residents and visitors taking the 
opportunity to find out about the range of 
community, economic and environmental 
projects underway in the area.  Fine 
weather ensured that the various stalls, 
performances and fireworks display were 
enjoyed by all. 

Implementation of the expansion of 
Money Box Credit Union across all areas of 
Herefordshire not already covered by a 
Credit Union began.  New collecting points 
were established in Newton Farm 
Information Centre and St. Martin’s Family 
Centre in South Wye. 

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

Programmes: The Tier 3 Market Towns Initiative Partnerships in Leominster and Ross-on-Wye expressed their 
concern regarding the funding arrangements for 2005-06.  New guidelines received state that only capital economic 
projects will be eligible for funding.  Council officers together with the Cabinet Member for Rural Regeneration and 
Small Holdings, met with Advantage West Midlands to discuss the concerns. 

Staffing: Progress with the Ross-on-Wye Strategic Action Plan was slower than planned, as the town’s Market Towns 
Support Officer left the Team during the reporting period. 

The Hotwok Show at the ‘Big 
Event — healthy eating workshop/
demonstration 

‘Big Event’ projects marquee—
promoting local projects, services 
and opportunities. 

Village races in the main ‘Big Event’ 
arena organised by the Active 
Community Project. 

26



ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

The Lifelong Learning Team has been preparing for the Adult Learning Inspectorate visit in December.  It has also 
undertaken staff training and formalised procedures to ensure that the service meets with the Disability 
Discrimination Act requirements and can make adaptations to venues which may otherwise be inaccessible. 

The Team has been looking at and responding to initial proposals from the European Commission regarding the 
future of Structural Funds.  This has included changes to the Common Agricultural Policy and proposals for a new 
Rural Development Programme (2007—2013).  The budget for the Rural Development Programme is likely to be 
€88.75bn, of which €31.3bn is for convergence regions (mostly new member states).  As a result, it is likely that there 
will be significantly less funding available to Herefordshire than at present.  The main two new structural funds 
detailed are: 

The Convergence Fund (78% of the EU Structural Funds) to support growth and job creation in the least developed 
areas - Herefordshire will not qualify 
The Competitiveness and Employment Fund  (18% of the EU Structural Funds) – for which Herefordshire can bid  

Herefordshire Partnership Support Services 

Page 5 Service News 

Family French at Weobley 

100th enquirer at library drop-in 
sessions- Beryl Brown, chair of the 
Eastholme Community Centre 

funding of about £400,000 over two 
years (total project cost £900,000 for 
“first steps” learning) courses which do 
not necessarily lead to a qualification 
but which provide skills for people who 
are currently disadvantaged. 
The Lifelong Learning Team has 
€5,000 from the EU (Grundvig and 
Socrates programmes) towards a 
£22,000 pilot project (“Teddy Bear”) to 
develop intergenerational learning. 

Four offers were made from the Small 
Projects Fund accounting for £4,000 in 
grant and matched by £17,713 in other 
funding and volunteer time. 

Six Shop Front Grant offers were made for 
premises in Ledbury and Bromyard 
accounting for £6,455 in grant and 
matched by £6,580 in private sector 
funding. 

Eleven Community Pride grant offers were 
made to projects in Ledbury and 
Bromyard.  Grant funding for these 
totalled £5,485 and is matched by 
£36,578 in other funding and volunteer 
time. 

The Project Development Team held half-
day sessions at each of the County’s ten 
libraries to give advice on funding and 
project development.  In total over 100 
people attended. 

The Team has worked on the panel  
preparing the content for the new 
Herefordshire Partnership website which is 
to be launched in January 2005. 

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

The European Officer, Vinia Abesamis 
working in partnership with regional and 
national groups, has taken a lead role in 
developing European policy for the Rural 
West of the region.  Vinia was successful 
in influencing the European Commission 
to increase the scope of the Rural 
Development Programme by potentially 
increasing the proposed budget for 
LEADER, which has been set at 7% of the 
€6.21bn budget. 

The Team has been asked to put out to 
tender and oversee research (financed by 
the Countryside Agency and Rural Affairs 
Forum) to deal with working across the 
border with Wales.  An example is the 
difficulty of funding telephone exchanges 
which cross the border to become 
broadband compatible. 

European and national funding continues 
to be accessed: 

£10,000 generated by the Team in 
2001 is now available to support social 
enterprises via an application process 
from the Community Development 
Ambition Group. 
ARCH (European Union funding) grants 
approved include £188,000 capital 
funding for Sure Start family centres in 
Leominster and Kington. The total 
project cost of about £1.7M, is funded 
nearly all from outside the County.  
ARCH is also providing £28,000 for 
Leominster Moneybox (credit union) to 
develop credit union services in County.  
Match funding is from the Council.  
The Lifelong Learning Team has ARCH 

27



Cultural Services 

Page 6 Service News 

One of the galleries who participated in this 
year’s h.Art week. 

h.Art week took place on 11-19th 
September, incorporating 34 exhibitions 
and events.  57 artists’ studios opened to 
the public, and 11 galleries across the 
County benefited from promotion during 
the week.  Initial figures received from 
artists and exhibition organisers indicate 
that during this year’s h.Art, visitors spent 
significantly more on purchasing local art 
and crafts than they did in 2003. 

The Village Artmarker project was 
awarded £50,000 from the Heritage 
Lottery Fund; this is in addition to funding 
raised from the Arts Council West 
Midlands and contributions received from  
Parish Councils.  The aim of this project is 
to engage residents in villages and 
parishes in the creation of public art as 
landmarks - that reflect the distinctiveness 
and heritage of their area.  Communities 
will be brought together to work with 
artists and historians.  Projects located in 
eight parishes are due to start in January 
2005, and will continue until late Autumn 
2006.  

‘Flavours of Herefordshire’ is a tourism 
project that celebrates local produce and 
promotes the County’s food and drink.  
The Flavours award ceremony was held on 
27th September.  A total of 54 entries 
were received across the eight categories, 
plus for the additional awards of 
Outstanding Achievement for the 
‘Restaurant of the Year’ of 2002 and 
2003, and a Special Excellence Award for 
Business Promotion.  The ceremony and 

the event was highlighted in the national 
Independent Newspaper. 

The final disabled access improvements to 
the Record Office were completed and 
were marked by a launch event on 30th 
September.  The improvements were 
undertaken with the Archive Service 
working closely with Herefordshire Access 
for All.  Their President opened the event 
with the Leader of the Council. 

Heritage sites played host to ‘Funky 
Fossils’ - a summer activity programme in 
which children of all ages made prints of 
fossils.  The exhibition of works (from the 
Service’s permanent collection) by local 
artist John Scarlett Davies  proved popular 
again this summer.  Heritage staff joined 
forces with those in the Archive Service to 
create displays for the Town Hall 
Centenary Event held at the end of August 
and ‘Art Cases’, the fascinating exhibit 
about the history of Ledbury and its 
environs, was transferred from the 
Heritage Centre to the museum 
community cases and continues to draw 
visitors. 

Satisfaction levels with the Heritage 
Service and it’s staff remained high. 

The improvement works to Friar Street 
Resource Centre were completed, and 
Heritage staff began planning the return of 
collections to the facility.  

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

External funding allows the Service to be much more ambitious in its delivery and aims.  The downside to this 
however, is that expectations are raised which may then be difficult to meet once a particular source of funding 
ceases.  This is a problem currently being faced by the Creative Industries and Tourism Enterprise Programme, both 
of which look unlikely to receive significant external funding after April 2005.   

The wet weather has a significant impact on events organised and funded by Cultural Service, and on the number of 
visitors to the County. 

Heritage Services continued to struggle to recruit sufficient volunteer staff to adequately man their sites.  This raises 
concern as to the sustainability of sites such as Ledbury and Bromyard which depend on volunteers to open. 

Visitor numbers to museums and heritage sites are down on the same period last year.  Early investigations indicate 
that this is in line with the national trend.  The Service is reacting by preparing a non-user survey to identify areas of 
the community who might be better served. 

Friar Street—before and after. 

28



Page 7 Service News 

Directorate Support Unit (DSU) 

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

Strategic work continued on the Policy and 
Community Support Services review and it 
was completed to the agreed timescale.  
Further progress is now dependant upon 
the outcome of the Policy and Community 
Heads of Service review. 

The Directorate Facilities Officer worked 
with Health and Safety Officers from  
Education and Human Resources on the  

development of a corporate Hazard 
Reporting protocol.  It is anticipated 
that this protocol will be approved 
and adopted at the next Health and 
Safety Committee meeting. 

Concerted promotion of the Modern 
Records Unit, combined with several  
office moves led to a major intake of 
records for storage. Upgrades to the 

MRU records management software and 
adoption of corporate retention schedules 
have allowed the MRU staff to support the 
corporate FOI work.  Uncertainty over the 
medium-term home of the MRU was 
dispelled when the lease for Merchant 
House was renewed in September, for ten 
years (with break clauses at 3 and 5 
years).

Purchase Order Processing (POP) rolled 
out to Community Youth Services. 

Four staff from the DSU took part in the 
Hereford Rowing Club's Fun Regatta (for 
novices!), and survived to tell the tale… 

ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

One of the DSU Admin Assistants– Lindsey Galbraith - was successful in her application for the temporary post of 
Tourism Enterprise Officer in the Directorate’s Cultural Services Section.  Lindsey has been seconded into this post to 
deal mainly with the financial elements of the project, and she will remain with Cultural Services through to the 
conclusion of the Tourism Enterprise initiative in Spring 2005. 

This was a great opportunity for Lindsey, although her departure left the DSU Admin Team under pressure.  However, 
after a period of a few weeks, agreement was given to the appointment of a temporary Admin Assistant, and it is 
hoped that the DSU will be back to strength some time in November. 

Jenny Goldsbury, Michelle Sheehan, 
Suzanne Wenczek and Lindsey 
Galbraith taking part in the Fun 
Regatta. 

Library opening hours were extended at 
five libraries across the County from 7th 
September - this means that since 2002, 
total opening hours have increased by 
60%. The Central Library now opens on 
three evenings until 7.30p.m., while 
Leominster, Ledbury, Ross-on-Wye and 
Colwall are now open on two evenings 
each week.  

After three years of operating from 
Hereford Town Hall, INFO in Herefordshire 
moved its city operations to the 
refurbished ground floor area of Garrick 
House on 23rd August, together with 
Revenues and Benefits.  Facilities include 
a Payments Office, a Benefits and Council 
Tax service point, an INFO reception desk, 

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

interview rooms and public internet access 
terminals.  Disabled access has been 
significantly improved. 

The Section held its first induction course 
for new staff at Castle Green with twelve 
inductees. 

Brenda Read-Brown, the Council's first 
ever Reader & Literature Development 
Officer, started work and is based at the 
Shirehall. 

Ross-on-Wye’s Mobile Library once again 
took part in the town's Carnival and took a 
third place prize in the ‘smaller vehicle’ 
category - all thanks to Clare Lockley and 
Caroline Camping. 

Libraries 

Ross-on-Wye’s Mobile Library at 
the town’s Carnival. 

Exceptional P.I. Performance 

To increase number of boxes stored 
at the Modern Records Unit by 20% 
by 31/03/05: a 30.5% increase 
was achieved by half-year following 
the promotion of the Unit’s facilities 
combined with several authority-
wide office moves. 

29



Page 8 Service News 

External Liaison (Sports Development) 

ISSUES ARISING DURING THE PERIOD 

The main issues again focus around the long-term funding of projects.  Whilst it is possible to externally fund 
initiatives in the short-term (even where there is an identified benefit for the local community) the criteria around on-
going external funding rarely covers the core cost of officer time. 

The Sports Referral Project has highlighted the need to develop even closer relationships with the local community to 
ensure exit routes for participants and to increase volunteer support.  However, pressure is being applied by the 
governing bodies of sport who have increased the required standard of qualifications held by volunteer sports 
coaches.  This is making participation in the development of sport on a voluntary basis less attractive. 

The final report for the LIFT (Exercise 
Referral Scheme) review was published in 
April and a Strategic Group was then 
formed.  An Operational Group has met to  
look at the practical implications of the 
proposed changes.  The new aims for LIFT  
have been agreed and the first actions will 
include developing the young people’s 
referral scheme as a pilot for Spring/
Summer 2005, and the ‘mapping 
exercises’ completed and fed back to 
groups at the January meeting. 

Following talks with Sport England and the 
Worcestershire All Sports Partnership, 
Herefordshire has agreed to become 
involved in the new County Sports 
Partnership for Herefordshire & 
Worcestershire.  The Partnership will  
undergo a complete restructure with core 
funding being made available on a 
regional basis to support the new 
infrastructure.  The Partnership has 
already started to work more closely with 
the local PCT’s, Children’s Fund and 
Community Safety Partnerships. 

S.H.A.P.E.S. (South Herefordshire Activity 
Promotion and Education Scheme) is an 
exciting new development funded through 
‘Active England’, which is supported by the 
Big Lottery & Sport England.  The funding 
was agreed in May and will be used to 
work with the communities of South 
Herefordshire to ensure sustainable 
development of physical activity 
programmes.  The Project comes on the 
back of the success of the South Wye 
Fitness Project, which has been funded for 
a further 3 years and strives to enhance 
the lives of people in the South Wye area 
of Herefordshire. 

ILAM (Institute of Leisure & Amenity 
Management) consultant Peter Joignant 
has been consulting a range of local and 
regional interest groups to provide a 
comprehensive Herefordshire Rivers and 
Flat Water Study.  This will assess the 
need and potential to develop water-based 
recreation and physical activity.  The full 
report is due to be completed in early 
November and it has been supported by 
Herefordshire Rivers – Leader +, 
Herefordshire Council, Herefordshire 
Sports Council and the Environment 
Agency.  

Following a period of development with 
local agencies, the Herefordshire Sports 
Referral Project is now taking referrals 
from several agencies including, Youth 
Offending Team, the Education Directorate 
and DASH Drugs Treatment Agency.  The 
Project is working closely with the 
community to provide exit routes into local 
provision and use sport and physical 
activity as a diversionary activity.  The 
Project is funded through Sport England’s 
Active Communities Development Fund 
and is supported by the Community Safety 
Partnership. 

The 2004 Herefordshire Youth Games saw 
the participation of over 400 young people 
in a range of sports at Hereford Leisure 
Centre.  This year, the Games included the 
new sports of Boccia and New Age Kurling, 
and for the first time included children 
with special needs from Barrs Court 
School. 

Main Activity and Key Achievements during August & September, 2004 

Herefordshire Youth Games—Tag 
Rugby Competition 

Pupil from Barrs Court School ‘putting 
the shot’ at Herefordshire Youth 
Games under the supervision of 
Herefordshire’s Head Athletics Coach 
Tony Williams. 

30



SOCIAL & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                                     3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Geoff Cole, 
Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 260721 

 
YouthService0.doc  
 

 YOUTH SERVICE – KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
 

Report By: Director of Policy and Community 
 

 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the under performance of the Community Youth Service 
against the four key performance indicators set by the DfES. 

Considerations 

2. The DfES has set four key performance targets for all local authority youth services 
these are: numbers of young people we are in CONTACT with, secondly those who 
are PARTICIPATING, and who then receive either a RECORDED or ACCREDITED 
outcome. In the first six months we are significantly under achieving against these 
targets. 

3. Due to the new targets and definitions we have adopted a new Management 
Information System (MIS) and reporting procedures. These have increased the 
administrative workload for youth workers and the focus on accredited learning 
outcomes, which are primarily delivered through small group work. This new system 
has not been imbedded sufficiently and we have both a high error rating requiring 
forms to be sent back, and a number of unreported areas of work.  

4. The MIS we have adopted is the nationally recognised system, however there have 
been a number of technical problems with the system. A new software developer has 
been appointed and a new version is due in January 2005, which is intended to 
resolve the current difficulties. These difficulties have resulted in a one-month delay 
in implementing the system, which means that only five months figures are shown on 
the report. 

5. The Youth Service has had a vacancy rate of 12% for all of this year.  This has been 
addressed through new recruitment activity but staff will not be in post until the third 
quarter. Many newly recruited staff are trainees who will require additional support 
and are unlikely to meet the required performance standards in their first 6 months of 
employment. 

6. The Youth Service is under funded against national and regional standards (National 
Youth Agency (NYA) standard £100 per head of 13 – 19, Herefordshire youth 
population 2004-5 allocation £59.54) and therefore understaffed.  The NYA standard 
for youth workers set per head of the youth population would mean 35.8 FTE workers 
for Herefordshire. Current allocation is 24.5 FTE youth workers. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

31



 

Financial Implications 

7. The Youth Service budget is currently being utilised as part of the strategic options 
exercise.  If the proposals were to be implemented in full the budget would be 
reduced by £100,000.  This would mean the closure of one youth centre and the 
cessation of financial support to the voluntary sector. This would reduce further the 
Youth Services ability to meet these targets. 

8. To meet the national standard of £100 per head of youth population aged 13 – 19, 
the Youth Service budget would need to be uplifted by £566,025. 

Recommendation 

 That the Committee note the report. 

 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

32



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                      3rd DECEMBER 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Greg Evans, Principle Accountancy Manager on (01432) 261848 

 

 MONITORING OF 2004/2005 REVENUE BUDGETS FOR 
SOCIAL, COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME AREAS PERIOD 1-7 

Report By: Principal Accountancy Manager 
 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide 

Purpose 

1. To advise Members of the actual net revenue expenditure against budget for 
the Social, Community & Economic Development programme areas to period 
7 of the financial year 2004-2005. 

 
Financial Implications 

2. All budget variances are to be noted within the context of the overall net 
revenue budgets for 2004-2005.  Any over or underspends will be carried 
forward under the financial regulations of Herefordshire Council. 

Considerations 

3. The monitoring report for period 7 is attached as Appendix I. The report 
shows the revised budget including carried forward over and underspends 
from 2003-04, actual performance, variances and projected out-turns for the 
main service areas within Social, Community and Economic Development.  

 
Social Development 

 
4. Social Development generated an overall carried forward underspend of 

£192,000 in 2003-04.  Adjustments were made for the Parks and Countryside 
overspend of £161,000 which was written off against the commuted sums 
reserve, a £10,000 contribution for the Plough Lane move, an underspend of 
£34,000 from Policy and Finance (Info) transferred to Libraries towards a new 
booking system and a contribution made towards the capping budget 
reductions. 

 
5. All carried forward underspends were allocated to the appropriate services 

following a full and detailed review of the planned expenditure. 
 
6. The 2004-05 Social Development budgets include profiling of major items of 

expenditure such as the grant payments to the Courtyard and the 
management fee to HALO to closer reflect the actual payment timescales. All 
other budgets to date are split into 1/12’s.  

 
7. At period 7 Social Development demonstrated an overall underspend of 

£371,431 against the period budget. Detailed analysis of the variances is 
shown in the Appendix. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

33



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                      3rd DECEMBER 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Greg Evans, Principle Accountancy Manager on (01432) 261848 

 

8. Parks and Countryside is underspent by £52,606 due to payments to HJS 
being made in arrears and the time taken to check and verify the monthly 
application. 

 
9. It is likely that the final position will be an overspend since the £79,000 

additional budget allocation was less than that required to meet the built-in 
deficit in respect of inflation and adopted land. The service also has budget 
pressures from ‘Britain In Bloom’, which will be the subject of a separate 
internal review. 

 
10. The Leisure Client heading is underspent as no expenditure has been 

incurred on the current and carried forward Sydonia Pool budgets. This 
budget provision is not likely to be required until 2005-06 so will be carried 
forward. Other costs for leased equipment and premises insurance are still to 
be charged. 

 
11. The Youth Service has underspent on staffing to date due to recruitment 

difficulties. This has further impacted on operational expenditure in the current 
year and spend on specific projects to be funded from carry forwards, which 
cannot commence until staff are employed.  

 
12. The recent round of recruitment was quite successful with 9 out of 12 

vacancies being filled. New staff are due to be in post within the next month at 
which point the monthly expenditure should start to increase. 

 
13. The Library Service’s overall position indicates an underspend against budget 

at period 7, however this is due to the early receipt of annual funding for the 
provision of the schools service in advance of any expenditure being incurred.  

 
14. Latest figures suggest an overspend on Library staffing costs, however the 

position is currently being investigated in more detail. There have been a 
number of recent changes to the staffing structure that involved certain posts 
being merged with INFO in Herefordshire (which appears in the Policy and 
Finance programme area). In addition, the restructure has led to an increase 
in opening hours and the additional costs associated with this need to be 
differentiated from basic monthly pay. 

 
15. Should further detailed investigation substantiate the suggested position there 

is still opportunity to mitigate any overspend by reducing expenditure on non-
employee headings where possible. 

 
16. The purchase of new fitness equipment has been allocated to the Leisure 

Contracts heading pending its lease. Once the lease drawdown is completed 
the expenditure will be matched with a lease credit. This process has taken 
longer than anticipated as some of the equipment delivered was faulty or 
incorrect. 

 
17. Whilst some progress will be made in reducing the accumulated Leisure 

Contracts deficit, it is still likely to be in the region of £100,000 at year-end.  
 
18. The overall anticipated outturn position for Social Development is likely to be 

a net overspend of £25,000, with several significant over and underspends 
contributing toward this position. 

 

34



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                      3rd DECEMBER 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Greg Evans, Principle Accountancy Manager on (01432) 261848 

 

Community and Economic Development 
 
19. The 2003-04 carried forward underspends were allocated to specific team 

budgets following a full and detailed review of expenditure plans. 2002-03 
underspends have been earmarked to support reductions in external funding 
over future years and have been allocated to the Management and 
Administration heading.  

 
20. Community & Economic Development budgets for 2004-05 feature profiling of 

budgets in order to more accurately reflect the timing of grant payments and 
partnership contributions. 

 
21. At period 7 Community & Economic Development showed an underspend of 

£435,059 against the profiled budget.  Vacancies across all teams accounted 
for some £66,000 of the variance. The balance results from a combination of 
studies and projects yet to commence and grants for various schemes such a 
Community Buildings are yet to be paid out. 

 
22. Should all planned expenditure for projects and studies occur within the 

financial year and the current trend in vacancies continue, it is likely that there 
will be an overall underspend of some £238,000. A large proportion of this 
underspend represents the earmarked funds for future shortfalls in external 
income. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That the position be noted. 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
• None identified 

35



36



A
pp

en
di

x 
I

So
ci

al
 &

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t f
or

 P
er

io
d 

7 
20

04
-0

5

To
ta

l
C

ar
ry

R
ev

is
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
bu

dg
et

va
ria

nc
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 
Va

ria
nc

e
B

ud
ge

t
Fo

rw
ar

ds
B

ud
ge

t
to

 d
at

e
to

 d
at

e
O

ut
tu

rn
£

£
£

£
£

£
%

£
£

So
ci

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

45
7,

76
0

2,
30

9
46

0,
06

9
20

9,
64

2
26

8,
37

3
58

,7
31

22
41

0,
06

9
50

,0
00

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

19
4,

67
0

13
,4

63
1,

20
8,

13
3

81
1,

54
4

86
3,

64
8

52
,1

04
6

1,
20

8,
13

3
0

P
ar

ks
 &

 C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 
1,

19
8,

64
0

0
1,

19
8,

64
0

64
6,

60
1

69
9,

20
7

52
,6

06
8

1,
29

8,
64

0
-1

00
,0

00
E

xt
er

na
l L

ia
is

on
29

1,
06

5
0

29
1,

06
5

12
2,

39
9

16
9,

78
7

47
,3

88
28

29
1,

06
5

0
Le

is
ur

e 
cl

ie
nt

1,
36

4,
49

0
65

,2
45

1,
42

9,
73

5
1,

05
8,

56
7

1,
27

1,
12

5
21

2,
55

8
17

1,
30

4,
73

5
12

5,
00

0
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

91
6,

97
5

15
9,

16
3

1,
07

6,
13

8
43

0,
89

9
62

7,
74

7
19

6,
84

8
31

97
6,

13
8

10
0,

00
0

Li
br

ar
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

87
8,

79
5

20
,7

97
1,

89
9,

59
2

1,
00

2,
89

5
1,

10
8,

09
5

10
5,

20
0

9
1,

99
9,

59
2

-1
00

,0
00

H
er

ita
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

s
51

6,
69

0
64

,2
92

58
0,

98
2

28
4,

25
6

33
8,

90
6

54
,6

50
16

58
0,

98
2

0
A

rc
hi

ve
s 

U
ni

t
23

6,
80

0
7,

00
0

24
3,

80
0

15
2,

19
1

14
2,

21
7

-9
,9

74
-7

24
3,

80
0

0

Le
is

ur
e 

C
on

tra
ct

s 
D

ef
ic

it
0

-1
40

,2
69

-1
40

,2
69

38
3,

94
0

-1
4,

74
0

-3
98

,6
80

-4
0,

00
0

-1
00

,2
69

To
ta

l S
oc

ia
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

8,
05

5,
88

5
19

2,
00

0
8,

24
7,

88
5

5,
10

2,
93

4
5,

47
4,

36
5

37
1,

43
1

7
8,

27
3,

15
4

-2
5,

26
9

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 V
ar

ia
nc

es

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
  D

ire
ct

or
 R

ec
ha

rg
e 

no
rm

al
ly

 re
ch

ar
ge

d 
at

 y
ea

r e
nd

. I
nc

lu
de

s 
£5

0,
00

0 
un

al
lo

ca
te

d 
bu

dg
et

 fr
om

 re
du

ce
d 

B
rid

ge
 S

tre
et

 fu
nd

in
g.

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
- t

he
 fi

gu
re

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f o
pe

ni
ng

 s
to

ck
 a

t T
IC

's
. C

ap
ita

l r
ep

ay
m

en
t c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

rty
ar

d 
ar

e 
no

t m
ad

e 
un

til
 y

ea
r-

en
d.

Pa
rk

s 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 - 

£1
61

,0
00

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 fr

om
 0

3-
04

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f a

ga
in

st
 c

om
m

ut
ed

 s
um

s.
 O

ve
rs

pe
nd

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 d
ue

 to
 c

os
t o

f a
do

pt
io

ns
, i

nf
la

tio
n,

 B
rit

ai
n 

in
 B

lo
om

 e
tc

..
Ex

te
rn

al
 L

ia
is

on
 - v

ar
io

us
 g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 s

til
l t

o 
be

 p
ai

d 
ou

t.
Le

is
ur

e 
C

lie
nt

 -  
H

al
o 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
 p

ai
d 

in
 fu

ll,
 le

as
in

g 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
. R

in
g 

fe
nc

ed
 S

yd
on

ia
 b

ud
ge

t n
ot

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 in

 0
4-

05
.

Yo
ut

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
-  2

00
3-

04
 c

ar
ry

 fo
rw

ar
d 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 b

ut
 n

ot
 s

pe
nt

 y
et

. S
er

vi
ce

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
du

e 
to

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t p

ro
bl

em
s,

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

pr
ed

ic
t t

he
 s

ca
le

 a
t p

re
se

nt
.

Li
br

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
e  

- a
nn

ua
l f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 L

E
A

 re
ce

iv
ed

 e
ar

ly
 s

o 
in

co
m

e 
is

 w
el

l a
he

ad
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

fil
e.

 S
ta

ff 
co

st
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
. 

H
er

ita
ge

 - 
C

ar
rie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 to
 b

e 
tra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 to
 F

ria
r S

t p
ha

se
 2

 c
ap

ita
l s

ch
em

e.
 A

ct
ua

ria
l s

tra
in

 p
en

si
on

 c
os

ts
 fr

om
 2

00
2-

03
 s

til
l t

o 
be

 c
ha

rg
ed

 b
y 

W
or

ce
st

er
 C

C
.

A
rc

hi
ve

s  
- B

us
in

es
s 

ra
te

s 
pa

id
 e

ar
ly

 in
 y

ea
r m

ea
ns

 s
pe

nd
 is

 a
he

ad
 o

f p
ro

fil
e.

Le
is

ur
e 

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 d

ef
ic

it 
- t

he
 c

os
t o

f n
ew

 fi
tn

es
s 

eq
ui

pm
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

is
 h

ea
di

ng
 p

en
di

ng
 th

e 
le

as
e 

dr
aw

do
w

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 m
on

th
.

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37



A
pp

en
di

x 
I

So
ci

al
 &

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t f
or

 P
er

io
d 

7 
20

04
-0

5

To
ta

l
C

ar
ry

R
ev

is
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
bu

dg
et

va
ria

nc
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 
Va

ria
nc

e
B

ud
ge

t
Fo

rw
ar

ds
B

ud
ge

t
to

 d
at

e
to

 d
at

e
O

ut
tu

rn
£

£
£

£
£

£
%

£
£

C
om

m
un

ity
 &

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

20
7,

43
9

19
7,

13
8

40
4,

57
7

15
5,

78
9

17
0,

99
1

15
,2

02
9

27
6,

24
7

12
8,

33
0

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

la
n 

an
d 

S
up

po
rt

52
5,

32
2

55
,8

45
58

1,
16

7
20

6,
16

4
32

3,
66

7
11

7,
50

3
36

52
1,

16
7

60
,0

00
E

co
no

m
ic

 In
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

41
6,

70
5

36
,9

86
45

3,
69

1
22

4,
67

7
26

2,
08

0
37

,4
03

14
43

3,
69

1
20

,0
00

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

1,
01

2,
52

4
40

,8
61

1,
05

3,
38

5
33

9,
66

9
60

4,
62

0
26

4,
95

1
44

1,
02

3,
38

5
30

,0
00

To
ta

l
2,

16
1,

99
0

33
0,

83
0

2,
49

2,
82

0
92

6,
29

9
1,

36
1,

35
8

43
5,

05
9

32
2,

25
4,

49
0

23
8,

33
0

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 V
ar

ia
nc

es
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
- C

ar
ry

 F
or

w
ar

ds
 to

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d.
 S

om
e 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
to

 m
ee

t e
xt

er
na

l f
un

di
ng

 s
ho

rtf
al

l i
n 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

.
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
la

n 
&

 S
up

po
rt

 - 
st

af
f v

ac
an

ci
es

, e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
n 

va
rio

us
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

st
ud

ie
s 

st
ill

 to
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
.

Ec
on

om
ic

 In
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t -

 s
ta

ff 
va

ca
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 y
et

 to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

.
C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t -
 G

ra
nt

s 
fo

r v
ar

io
us

 s
ch

em
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

om
m

un
ity

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 y

et
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 o
ut

. S
ta

ff 
va

ca
nc

ie
s.

38



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                                3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE   

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 260721 

 
 

StaffNumbers1.doc  
 

STAFFING NUMBERS WITHIN THE POLICY AND COMMUNITY 
DIRECTORATE  

 
Report By: Director of Policy and Community 
 
Wards Affected 

 Countywide. 

Purpose 

To advise Members of the staffing numbers within the Policy and Community 
Directorate as at 1st October, 2004.  This report also includes staff not necessarily 
within the remit of Social and Economic Development. 

Considerations 

The Policy and Community Directorate is made up of staff who report within the remit 
of Social and Economic Development, and those who report within Policy and 
Finance. 

 The total numbers of employees (full time and part time) as at 1st October, 2004 
within the Policy and Community Directorate is 494.  This is made up of: 

Full Time employees  282 
Part Time employees  212 

Full Time Equivalent posts 375.48 
Vacant Posts    67 

The total number of staff in the Policy and Community Directorate: 

Community & Economic Development 
 

F/T P/T total FTE

HoS & Secretary/Administrator 2 0 2 2.00
Economic Investment & Development 10 3 13 11.50
Community Regeneration 15 11 26 20.81
Policy and Commissioning  11 2 13 12.00
Lifelong Learning 5 3 8 6.60

TOTAL 43 19 62 52.91
  

Vacant Posts      8    
 
 
 

Culture, Leisure & Education for Life 
 

F/T P/T total FTE

HoS & Secretary/Administrator 2 1 3 2.41

AGENDA ITEM 10

39



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                    3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 269721 

Community Youth Service** 18 31 49 24.83
Directorate Support 10 3 13 11.09
External Liaison* 14 5 19 15.72
Heritage, Culture and Archives 34 50 84 59.84
Parks, Countryside & Leisure Dev 14 12 26 18.99

TOTAL 92 102 194 132.88
  

Vacant Posts      34   
 

Customer Services, Libraries & Information F/T P/T total FTE

HoS & Secretary/Administrator 2 0 2 2.00
Central 14 17 31 22.80
South 13 21 34 20.84
North 13 33 46 28.63
Training, Development & Communications 2 0 2 2.00
Library Policy & Development 7 14 21 14.20
Public Legal Electronic Access (PLEA) 1 0 1 1.00

TOTAL 52 85 137 91.47
  

Vacant Posts      5   
 

Directorate F/T P/T total FTE

Policy & Community 3 0 3 3.00
TOTAL 3 0 3 3.00

 
Information Communication Technology (ICT) F/T P/T total FTE

ICT 77 1 78 77.61
TOTAL 77 1 78 77.61

  
Vacant Posts      18   

 
Policy and Communication F/T P/T total FTE

HoS & Sec/Administrator 2 0 2 2.00
Public Relations 4 1 5 4.61
Corporate Policy & Research 9 4 13 11.00

TOTAL 15 5 20 17.61
  

Vacant Posts      2   
 
 *Some staff in this section report outside Council structure 

 **Not included in these figures are Community Youth Worker for Hereford City North 
and Training and Accreditation Officer which are vacant.  Other vacancies in the 
Youth Service are 20+ part–time workers totalling 3.9 fte (143 youth hours per week). 

 

 

40



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                    3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 269721 

 

The following posts have been externally funded through various funding schemes: 

POST TITLE % FUNDED BY HEREFORDSHIRE 
COUNCIL 

Community & Economic Development  
Community Regeneration  
Kington Regeneration Co-ordinator 50.36%                             All 
Kington Monitoring and Admin Officer 0%                                    percentages 
South Wye SRB Programme Manager 55% ) + accom                 relate to  
South Wye SRB Monitoring & Admin Officer 55% ) & utility bills            direct 
South Wye SRB Publicity Media Officer 30.85% 
LEADER+ Programme Manager 0% )                                  NI  
LEADER+ Monitoring and Admin Officer 0% ) + accom                   and 
LEADER+ Marketing Officer 0% )                                 superannuation 
Ledbury Market Towns Assistant 16.61%                                      “ 
Bromyard Market Towns Assistant 5.84%                                        “ 
Market Towns Support Officer (Ross-on-Wye) 24.23% 
Market Towns Support Officer (Leominster) 21.77% 
  
Economic Investment and Development  
Redundant Building Grant Programme 
Manager 

0%, HC provides accommodation 

Redundant Building Grant Monitoring Officer 0%, HC provides accommodation 
Herefordshire Partnership Regeneration  
Co-ordinator (Project Development) 

100% 

Herefordshire Partnership Regeneration 
Officer (Project Development) 

100% 

  
Policy and Commissioning  
Team Manager 75%  All 
Senior Policy Officer 75%  percentages 
Policy Officer 0%  relate 
Policy Officer 24%  to 
European Officer 0%  direct 
Senior Partnership Commissioning Officer 75%  salary 
Programme Officer (Partnership Monitoring) 80%  NI 
Programme Officer (Programme Monitoring) 80%  and 
Programme Officer (Programme Delivery) 0%  superannuation 
7 x Lifelong Learning Officers 0%  plus 
Senior Learning Officers 100%  accommodation 
Community Development Co-ordinator 87%  and  
Community Involvement Co-ordinator 87%  admin 
Community Planning Worker 100%  support 
Community Involvement Assistant 100%  provided 
Team Support Assistant 100%  by HC 
  
Culture, Leisure & Education for Life  
Community Youth Service  
Outdoor Education Co-ordinator 0% - accommodation/administration 

41



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                    3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 269721 

support funded by HC 
Rural Contact Worker 0% - no on-costs. Line management & 

administration support funded by HC 
Youth Participation and Action Worker 46% - no on-costs 
 
Herefordshire CVYS Co-ordinator 100% - funded by HC. Line management, 

admin support & office accommodation 
funded externally. 

Youth Involvement Worker – vacant Funded through LPSA grant 
  
Cultural Services  
Creative Industries Co-ordinator 12% includes on-costs, accommodation, 

etc  
Creative Industries Assistant 12% includes on-costs, accommodation, 

etc 
Creative Industries Outreach Worker 6% includes on-costs, accommodation, etc 
Tourism Enterprise Officer 9% includes on-costs, accommodation, etc 
Tourism Enterprise Assistant 9% includes on-costs, accommodation, etc 
Crafts Officer 50% plus accommodation, etc 
Finds Liaison Officer 2.5% plus 2.5% officer time, equipment, etc
Collection Officer (Museum Development) 50% includes on-costs, accommodation, 

etc 
  
External Liaison  
Outreach Exercise Consultant (South Wye) 72.2% plus accommodation etc 
Walking for Health Co-ordinator 6.4% plus accommodation etc 
Exercise Referral Co-ordinator 50% salary and on costs 
Exercise Fitness Consultant   0% - support and line management from 

External Liaison  
SHAPEs (new project – vacant post) 11% plus accommodation and support 
Community Safety Partnership Co-ordinator 0% - accommodation, administration 

support funded by Council 
Drug Co-ordinator 0% - salary funded by Home Office but 

training and office space funded by 
external sources 

Partnership Manager (Community Safety 
Drugs Partnership) 

25% funded by the Council (Social 
Services, Education, and Environment), 
support/line management by External 
Liaison 

Young Person Substance Misuse Coordinator 
(part-time) 

0% - accommodation and support from 
Council  

Criminal Justice Intervention Programme 
Coordinator 

0% - externally funded accommodation, 
support by Council (external budget 
available) 

Community Development Worker – Drugs 0% - externally funded accommodation, 
support by Council (external budget 
provision)  

Secretary to CSDP 0% - externally funded accommodation, 
support by External Liaison 

Information Officer CSDP 0% - externally funded accommodation, 
support by External Liaison 

42



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                    3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 269721 

Child’s Rights and Advocacy Officer 75% salary and on costs funded by the 
Council.  Employed by Connexions 

Sports Referral Coordinator 5% Herefordshire Council, 95% partner 
organisations, accommodation and support 
from External Liaison 

Girls And Women Football Development 
Coordinator 

0% - externally funded accommodation, 
support from Council 

 
Rugby Administrator (Vacant post)  0% - externally funded accommodation, 

support from Council 
Race Equality Development Officer 50% Council salary cost plus 

accommodation and support cost 
  
Leisure Development, Parks & Countryside  
Cricket Development Officer 0% - accommodation in halo leased 

premises 
Assistant Cricket Development Officer 0% - accommodation in halo leased 

premises 
AONB Officer Wye Valley )  Shared contribution 
AONB Development Officer Wye Valley )  to level 25% 
AONB Officer Malvern Hills )  salary 
AONB Development Officer Malvern Hills )  with partners 
  
Customer Services, Libraries & Information  
Project Manager (PLEA) 0% includes on-costs, we provide 

accommodation, etc 
Research and Information Co-ordinator 
(vacant) 

0% includes on-costs, we provide 
accommodation, etc 

  
ICT  
HIT Programme Manager 50% includes on-costs, plus overheads 
eGateway Project Manager 50% approx via carry forward monies 
  
Policy and Communication  
HCN Co-ordinator 24% includes on-costs, accommodation, 

etc 
Senior Research Officer 33% plus on-costs, accommodation, etc 
Community Safety & Drugs Audit Researcher 
(temporary until Nov 2004) 

0%   plus accommodation 

 
Financial Implications 

 The total cost in salaries including superannuation and National Insurance, but  
excluding externally funded posts for the current year for the following areas are: 

 Director, Secretarial Support and 
      Policy and Communication  £914,575 
Info in Herefordshire  £647,310 
Modern Records Unit _£28,920 
 
Policy and Finance Total  £1,617,805 

43



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                    3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 269721 

 
Social Development  £3,952,000  
Economic Development £1,196,277 

 Social and Economic Development Total   £5,148,277 

Information Communication Technology £2,400,000 

         Total  £9,166,082 

  

The total cost of the external funding monies raised by Social and Economic 
Development is £8.95 million per year over period 2000 - 2006 (£53.75 million).  
Annual Budget to support programmes £650,000 of which £125,000 comes from 
sources external to the Council. 

 The total income for 2004/05 for Policy and Finance for these programmes including 
Home Office grants, Sport England, Fire Authority, Primary Care Trust, National 
Treatment Agency (NTA) and West Mercia Police Authority is £1,206,500 (excludes 
Public Legal Electronic Access).  They are supported by £40,000 Council budget. 

 External funding raised in Information Communication Technology (ICT) is £2,100,00 
capital and £1,500,000 revenue for the Herefordshire In Touch (HIT) Programme 
over a seven-year programme commencing 2000/2001.  In addition Implementing 
Electronic Government (IEG) monies allocated in 2004/05 is £350,000 capital and 
£1,000,000 revenue. 

 A review is currently being undertaken in the Directorate in respect of management 
arrangements and a listing will be available by 1st April, 2005 of organisational 
arrangements from that date. 

 RECOMMENDATION: 

 That the report be noted subject to any comments that Members might 
wish to make. 

  

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

44



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jennifer Watkins, Policy and Commissioning Manager on (01432) 260610 

 HEREFORDSHIRE PLAN AMBITION GROUPS 

Report By: Director of Policy and Community 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider recent progress in relation to the Herefordshire Plan Ambitions relevant 
to the Policy and Community Directorate. 

Considerations 

2. The Policy and Community Directorate has overall responsibility for the development 
and delivery of the Herefordshire Plan for the Council.  In addition the Directorate is 
involved in supporting the delivery of a number of the 10 Ambitions in the Plan.  
Progress in delivering each of these ambitions is set out in turn below. 

 Business, Economic Development and Tourism Ambition Group 

4. “Ambition: To support Business Growth and create more and better paid work in 
Herefordshire” 
 
Membership 
 
The Ambition Group includes representatives of Herefordshire Council, Chamber of 
Commerce & Business Link Herefordshire & Worcestershire, Advantage West 
Midlands, Jobcentre Plus, Learning & Skills Council, Federation of Small Businesses, 
and VSA Representation. 
 
Work Being Undertaken by the Group 
 
The work of the group remains focused on the development of the new Herefordshire 
Economic Development Strategy. Information on existing projects and activities has 
been obtained from all organisations represented on BETAG and other Ambition 
Groups to inform the Action Plan and identify gaps.  BETAG will lead on the delivery 
and monitoring of the strategy once it is completed and the structure of the Group 
has been the subject of discussion to ensure that the correct level of representation 
and resource commitment can be obtained. Group members have taken part in a 
survey to establish the current levels of representation and resource availability. 
 
The group fed back to the Rural Regeneration Zone Economic Development Pillar 
Group on economic development objectives and associated existing activities in 
Herefordshire, to contribute to the economic development themes being developed 
for the Zone.  BETAG is represented on the Pillar Group, which has been 
undertaking a review of key objectives and activities for the Zone Implementation 
Plan.  This is an important piece of work, because it can influence future spending 
decisions on regeneration funding. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11

45



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jennifer Watkins, Policy and Commissioning Manager on (01432) 260610 

 
4. Community Development and Local Services Ambition Group 

 
“Ambition: Encourage communities to shape the future of Herefordshire” 
 
Membership 
 

            The ambition group membership comprises of a mixture of voluntary, statutory and  
 Community sector representatives from Herefordshire.  There are also a number of  

associate members from regional and sub-regional organizations.  The group is 
currently in the process of its annual election of officers. 
 
Work being undertaken by the Group 
 
Ambition Group members recently voted to support Money Box Credit Union by 
awarding them £12,000 that was being held by the Herefordshire Partnership 
Support Team to implement the recommendations of the report ‘Bridging the 
Financial Divide’.  This will enable the group to: 
 
• Make additional loans 
• Provide match funding for other European funding 
• Provide services and undertake marketing in areas not covered by European or 

Single Regeneration Bid (SRB) funding 
 

The Group has been working in partnership with the Social Inclusion and Anti-
Poverty Ambition Group to produce the Autumn/Winter edition of the Herefordshire 
Partnership Newsletter. 
 
Work is underway to update the ‘Who’s Who Guide’, a partnership document 
containing contact details and a brief description of the role of each development 
worker in Herefordshire and the support that they can offer. 

 
5. Community Safety and Drugs Partnership 
 
 "Ambition: Reduce crime and disorder and make Herefordshire safer." 

 
Membership 
 
Herefordshire Council, West Mercia Constabulary, Herefordshire Primary Care Trust, 
National Probation Service, Hereford & Worcester Fire & Rescue Service, West 
Mercia Police Authority, Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending Service, 
Voluntary Sector Assembly, Registered Social Landlords Forum. 
 
Supported by themed implementation groups; membership includes, public, private, 
voluntary and charitable agencies. 
 
Work being undertaken by the Group 

 
Currently, the main focus for the Partnership is developing its next strategy for April 
2005.  A conference was held on Wednesday, 30 November to which all key 
stakeholders across the county were invited.  The key findings from the audit and 
consultation process will be fed back and priorities for our next three-year strategy 
will be proposed.  After this event, our strategy and detailed action plans will be 
written. 
 

46



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jennifer Watkins, Policy and Commissioning Manager on (01432) 260610 

 
Drug Intervention Programme (DIP – formerly known as CJIP): 

  
DIP aims to engage drug-using offenders into treatment and provide them with the 
holistic support they need to ensure they do not drop out of services.  This 
programme has just successfully recruited two Care co-ordinators who will be 
responsible for case managing clients.  The project will be going live in January. 
 
Prolific and Other Priority Offenders Scheme: 
 
The Partnership is in the early stages of establishing a scheme which targets the 
most prolific offenders across the County and will work with them to reduce their 
offending behaviour.  Any drug using offenders will be linked into the DIP scheme. 
 
The project has three phases: 
• catch and convict 
• resettlement 
• prevent and deter 

 
6. Herefordshire Cultural Consortium 
 

“Ambition: Develop Herefordshire as an active, vibrant and enjoyable place to be” 
 
Membership  
 
Representatives of the areas of libraries, arts, heritage, tourism, recreational 
countryside from the voluntary, private, education and public sectors (not 
representatives from organisations as such). 
 
Work being undertaken by the group 
 
On 29 September 2004, the Cultural Consortium held its Annual Away Day, which 
looked specifically at establishing a Cultural Ambassadors Scheme.  There were two 
key note speakers - one local and one regional - that stimulated debate regarding the 
establishment of a network of people in the community that could promote and 
advocate involvement in cultural activities.   Ideas coming out of the Away Day will 
now be progressed by a small working group. 
 
Work is taking place to provide a cross-ambition group to the opportunities presented 
by the potential of the UK hosting the 2012 Olympics and Herefordshire's 
involvement. This has resulted in press coverage and presentation at the 
Herefordshire Partnership Conference. 
 
The Consortium in collaboration with the Council has produced a response to the 
Government released consultation document "Culture at the Heart of Regeneration".  
The document looks at ways of using culture as a tool for community and economic 
regeneration, with the Herefordshire response specifically highlighting on the impacts 
and good practice in rural areas.  
 

7. Herefordshire Learning Partnership 
 

"Ambition: Provide excellent education, training and learning opportunities in 
Herefordshire for all ages" 

47



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jennifer Watkins, Policy and Commissioning Manager on (01432) 260610 

 
Membership 
 
The Board now has its full complement of members with the appointment of Mary 
Simpson, Chair of the Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services, to take up 
the second Voluntary Sector position. 

 
Most of the six second-tier groups have met now with the first “Skills for Employment” 
meeting scheduled for Monday 29th November at Sun Valley. This group will allow a 
clear strategic direction to be adopted in the field of work-based learning provision in 
the County. 

 
 Work being undertaken by the Group 
 

The Board has been fully involved in the production of the earning and Skills 
Council’s (LSC) Strategic Area Review of current post-16 learning & skills provision 
in Herefordshire. 

 
Two meetings, in September and October, in which detailed discussions on the 
strategic options were a major item on the agenda, have been an important phase in 
the preparation of the consultation document. The closing date for comments is 7th 
January 2005. 

 
A second issue (Autumn 2004) of the newsletter ‘Learning Link’ is in production and 
should be distributed in late November/early December to a wide range of provider 
organisations, learners, community & voluntary groups, schools and parents. The last 
issue was also sent to all County Councillors and to all parish clerks in the country. 

 
The Adult and Community Learning Mapping project is now in its final phase and the 
full analysis of Herefordshire’s Adult & Community Learning provision, its potential 
and actual learning venues, and the areas of learning/qualification levels has been 
prepared. The data will be made visual by a series of maps that will be presented for 
the first time at the Learning Partnership Board meeting on Friday 10th December 
2004, together with the key findings and recommendations of the survey. 

 
The Learning Mentors project has had its Higher Education funding from the Aim 
Higher Initiative confirmed and the Learning Partnership is now engaged in detailed 
negotiations with partners to provide some additional funding and support to the nine 
part-time mentors who will be working both in geographical and thematically-defined 
areas. 

 
Funding has also been secured from Aim Higher to appoint a 0.5 Full Time 
equivalent Project Officer in January 2005 to lead on the development of this project. 

 
8. Social Inclusion and Anti Poverty Ambition Group (SIAPAG) 
 

“Ambition: To Reduce Poverty and Isolation in Herefordshire” 
 
Membership  
 
The membership of the Ambition Group consists of representatives of service 
providers, service users and advocacy groups.  A number of Council departments 
are represented.  The membership is currently under review to ensure that it is 
appropriate; SIAPAG is represented on sub-regional and regional groups including 
the Rural Regeneration Zone Pillar Group. 

48



SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY                3RD DECEMBER, 2004 
COMMITTEE 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jennifer Watkins, Policy and Commissioning Manager on (01432) 260610 

 
Work being undertaken by the Group  

 
The Group has worked, with the Community Development and Local Services 
Ambition Group to produce the Autumn/Winter edition of the Herefordshire 
Partnership Newsletter, which will be published shortly. 
 
Representatives of the Group met with the Housing Ambition Group to identify 
potential areas for co-operation. An area that was identified for possible future joint 
work was rural housing. 
  
The group has held a series of Workshops on Involvement of Rural Communities, 
supported by Angela Downing of Community First and Helen Lee of the Supporting 
People team at the PCT. Members of Parish Councils and community organisations 
and community workers attended the workshops and feedback has been very 
positive. Demand was such that an extra workshop was necessary to accommodate 
the number who wished to attend. 

 
Strategic work by the group has included responding to consultation on the 
Herefordshire Economic Development strategy and on Performance Indicators. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT subject to any comments by the Committee the report be noted. 

  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

49



50



SOCIAL & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3RD DECEMBER, 2004 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Geoff Cole, 
Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 260721 

 
BVRTourismServices0.doc 
 

 BEST VALUE REVIEW OF TOURISM SERVICES 
 

Report By: Director of Policy and Community 
 

 

Wards Affected 

 Countywide 

Purpose 

1. To receive an update on the Best Value Review Improvement Plan for Tourism 
Services. 

Report 

2. During the period 2000/2001 a Best Value Review was undertaken into the 
provision of Tourism Services.  Arising from that review a draft Improvement Plan - 
the Stage 4 report – was prepared by the Cabinet Member based on the outcome of 
the review.  The draft Improvement Plan was presented to this Committee on 10th 
September, 2001 and, following consideration, was accepted for implementation. 

3. The Committee received a report on progress at its meeting on 4th September, 2003 
and are again invited to review progress against the Improvement Plan.  

4. The latest position is detailed in the attached Appendix 1. 

Recommendation 

 That subject to any comments the Committee may wish to make to the 
Cabinet Member (Community and Social Development) concerning 
progress against the Improvement Plan, the Committee note the report. 

 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

51



52



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 

      
 

 
  

 
 

H
ER

EF
O

R
D

SH
IR

E 
TO

U
R

IS
M

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
 

B
ES

T 
VA

LU
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 
 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 (U
PD

A
TE

D
) 

        
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

4 

53



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

ER
EF

O
R

D
SH

IR
E 

TO
U

R
IS

M
 S

ER
VI

C
E 

B
ES

T 
VA

LU
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 2
00

1 
- 2

00
6 

  
 

K
EY

 T
A

SK
S 

 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 
D

EL
IV

ER
Y 

 
 

 
 

1.
1 C

ar
ry

 o
ut

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
re

po
si

tio
ni

ng
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
   

R
ep

or
t d

et
ai

lin
g 

op
tio

ns
 

fo
r n

ew
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

to
 

re
fle

ct
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

ec
on

om
ie

s 
of

 s
ca

le
/jo

in
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
to

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

A
pr

il 
20

02
   

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

N
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

at
 p

re
se

nt
.  

W
ill 

be
 re

so
ur

ce
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 if
 o

ffi
ce

 
re

lo
ca

tio
n 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
en

ta
ile

d.
  

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

re
-s

tru
ct

ur
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

02
.  

 
To

ur
is

m
 re

m
ai

ns
 w

ith
in

 
C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

1.
2 

  C
on

su
lt 

pa
rtn

er
s 

on
 

m
od

el
s 

fo
r e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 a

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 T
ou

ris
m

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 a

nd
 

on
 li

nk
s 

to
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
To

ur
is

m
 A

m
bi

tio
n 

S
ub

-
G

ro
up

 

To
 c

al
l t

og
et

he
r 

pa
rtn

er
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

an
d 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
of

 s
uc

h 
a 

gr
ou

p,
 a

nd
 to

 fo
rm

al
is

e 
th

e 
co

ns
tit

ut
io

n 
if 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

A
pr

il 
20

02
 

   C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

S
ta

ff 
tim

e 
fro

m
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
fo

r a
dm

in
is

te
rin

g 
su

ch
 a

 
gr

ou
p 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

. 

To
ur

is
m

 C
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

as
 

fir
st

 m
ee

tin
g 

in
 2

8th
 

A
pr

il 
20

03
 

1.
3 

 U
se

 B
us

in
es

s 
E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
M

od
el

 to
 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
&

 
de

liv
er

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

sh
ow

in
g 

st
re

ng
th

s 
&

 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 

A
pr

il 
20

02
  

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

S
ta

ff 
tim

e 
fro

m
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
C

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ia
is

on
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

B
us

in
es

s 
E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
m

od
el

. 

54



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
4 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sp

ec
ify

in
g 

ne
w

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ru
ct

ur
e/

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
re

in
st

at
em

en
t 

of
 fu

ll 
tim

e 
To

ur
is

m
 O

ffi
ce

r. 

N
ew

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 s
tru

ct
ur

e,
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
se

rv
in

g 
us

er
/s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

  
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

D
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

ot
he

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 in

flu
en

ce
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ot
he

r J
ob

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n,

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 

R
ev

ie
w

s 
fo

r P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
A

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

de
te

rm
in

an
t. 

R
es

ol
ve

 
To

ur
is

m
 O

ffi
ce

r p
os

t b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

1.
 

S
ta

ffi
ng

 re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

pr
il 

20
02

. 

C
os

ts
 to

 b
e 

as
ce

rta
in

ed
.

 P
rin

ci
pa

l T
ou

ris
m

 
O

ffi
ce

r –
 in

 p
os

t D
ec

 
02

. 
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

2 
 - 

2 
ne

w
 

po
st

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 N

ov
 

20
02

  
 P

er
m

an
en

t T
ou

ris
m

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
. 

  

55



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
5 

 Id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

in
g 

ou
t a

nd
 in

vi
te

 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 

To
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
in

to
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

se
tti

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
.  

G
ro

up
 T

ra
ve

l T
ra

de
 

M
an

ua
l, 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
3 

(n
ow

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

O
th

er
 P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

 

P
ro

du
ct

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

s 
to

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
te

nd
 to

 c
os

t 
m

or
e,

 s
in

ce
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
af

f c
os

ts
 a

re
 ‘h

id
de

n’
 

an
d 

al
re

ad
y 

co
ve

re
d.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

he
re

 s
om

e 
of

 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

os
ts

 c
an

 
be

 re
co

ve
re

d,
 a

s 
is

 th
e 

ca
se

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
ro

up
 

Tr
av

el
 T

ra
de

 M
an

ua
l, 

w
he

re
by

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 re

ve
nu

e 
is

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d.

 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 b
us

in
es

s 
to

ur
is

m
,  

tra
ve

l  
tra

de
 

th
ro

ug
h 

A
P

H
 w

ith
 O

bj
 2

 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

 C
oa

ch
 to

ur
s 

pi
ck

ed
 u

p 
by

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
. 

1.
6 

 R
ev

ie
w

 T
ou

ris
m

 U
ni

t 
O

ffi
ce

 lo
ca

tio
n 

S
ta

ff 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n.
 

R
ed

uc
ed

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

an
d 

co
st

s.
 T

o 
be

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 
C

ou
nc

il-
w

id
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 

Ju
ne

 2
00

2 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

O
ffi

ce
 re

lo
ca

tio
n 

co
st

s 
 

A
ll 

te
am

 m
em

be
rs

 
m

ov
ed

 to
 P

lo
ug

h 
La

ne
 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

m
uc

h 
be

tte
r w

or
ki

ng
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t. 

1.
7 

D
ev

el
op

 o
ffi

ce
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
m

an
ua

l w
hi

ch
 

de
ta

ils
 re

sp
on

se
 m

et
ho

ds
 

an
d 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

to
ur

is
m

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 O

ffi
ce

 
M

an
ua

l 
C

om
m

en
ce

 J
ul

y 
20

02
, 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

ut
um

n 
20

02
, 

re
vi

se
d 

ev
er

y 
2 

ye
ar

s.
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
TI

C
-s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 T
IC

 
R

ev
ie

w
. 

Fu
lfi

lle
d 

by
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
M

an
ua

l 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

t a
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
le

ve
l. 

56



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
8 

R
ev

ie
w

 to
ur

is
m

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 N

at
io

na
l 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 

na
tio

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

A
nn

ua
lly

, 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
s 

su
bm

itt
ed

 M
ar

ch
 3

1st
. 

 N
O

T 
A

C
H

IE
VA

B
LE

 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
N

o 
na

tio
na

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

or
 to

ur
is

m
 p

ro
du

ce
d,

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

lo
ca

l 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 p
ro

du
ce

d,
 

ou
tp

ut
s 

lin
ke

d 
to

 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

re
vi

si
on

 
of

 th
e 

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
tra

te
gy

  
1.

9 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

N
at

io
na

l 
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

/B
as

el
in

e 
D

at
a 

E
xe

rc
is

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

TI
C

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
s 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
1 

– 
ne

w
 

C
ou

nt
y 

m
od

el
 o

f 
B

as
el

in
e 

E
xe

rc
is

e.
 

TI
C

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
2.

 A
nn

ua
l. 

O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 / 
N

EE
D

S 
R

ES
O

U
R

C
E 

 

C
a.

 £
20

0 
fo

r L
oc

al
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
B

as
el

in
e 

D
at

a 
ex

er
ci

se
. 

C
a 

£2
00

0 
fo

r T
IC

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
.  

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Th
er

e 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
.  

M
or

e 
be

ne
fic

ia
l w

ou
ld

 
be

 m
ys

te
ry

 s
ho

pp
er

 
ex

er
ci

se
 fo

r t
he

 T
IC

s 
bu

t w
ou

ld
 c

os
t i

n 
th

e 
re

gi
on

 o
f £

3,
00

0.
 

In
tro

du
ce

d 
vi

si
to

r 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
s 

in
 

su
m

m
er

 o
f 2

00
4 

at
 

TI
C

’s
. 

1.
10

 R
ev

ie
w

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 

th
e 

To
ur

is
m

 U
ni

t t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

te
le

ph
on

e 
co

ve
r. 

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 a

nd
 

kn
ow

le
dg

ea
bl

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

st
af

f. 
P

er
so

na
lis

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 re
sp

on
se

 
le

ve
ls

 fo
r u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 

se
rv

ic
e.

  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 - 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

01
 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 re
pl

ac
e 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

S
ta

ffi
ng

 re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

m
ay

 
pe

rm
it 

so
m

e 
re

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
  

To
ur

is
m

 a
ss

is
ta

nt
 

ap
po

in
te

d 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

2 
To

ur
is

m
 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 –

 
in

 p
os

t N
ov

 2
00

2 
  

In
cr

ea
se

 a
dm

in
 s

up
po

rt 
in

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

57



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
11

 E
xp

lo
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r i
nt

ro
du

ci
ng

 v
oi

ce
m

ai
l 

fa
ci

lit
y 

fo
r T

ou
ris

m
 U

ni
t 

st
af

f 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 ti
m

e.
 

M
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 

an
sw

er
ph

on
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
A

ss
es

s 
co

st
s 

an
d 

be
ne

fit
s.

 

A
pr

il 
20

02
 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

P
ur

ch
as

e 
co

st
s 

A
ns

w
er

in
g 

m
ac

hi
ne

s 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
02

. 

1.
12

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

st
or

ag
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
lit

er
at

ur
e 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

eq
ui

pm
en

t -
 to

 a
llo

w
 

re
gu

la
r a

cc
es

s 
by

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
, s

af
e 

an
d 

dr
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
to

 s
to

re
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 

E
as

y 
ac

ce
ss

 s
to

ra
ge

 
fa

ci
lit

y 
Ju

ne
 2

00
2 

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

 

Le
as

e 
or

 o
n-

co
st

s 
of

 
st

or
ag

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
Th

ro
ug

h 
E

U
 fu

nd
in

g 
a 

st
or

ag
e 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r a

ll 
C

ou
nc

il 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

as
 s

et
 u

p 
in

 2
00

2 
w

ith
 a

 lo
ca

l 
pr

iv
at

e 
co

m
pa

ny
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
at

 re
so

ur
ce

 
co

m
es

 to
 a

n 
en

d 
in

 
20

04
. 

 
1.

13
 U

pd
at

e 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
S

af
et

y 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 
al

l s
ta

ff 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
f m

an
ua

l 
ha

nd
lin

g 
ris

ks
. 

O
rg

an
is

e 
M

an
ua

l 
H

an
dl

in
g 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 

co
ur

se
. 

A
ut

um
n 

20
01

 
 O

N
-G

O
IN

G
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t s

ta
ff 

to
 

co
ve

r T
IC

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
. 

R
ep

or
t r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
D

ec
 2

00
1.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, n

ee
ds

 
up

da
tin

g 
of

 ri
sk

 a
nd

 
tra

in
in

g.
 

58



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
14

 R
ev

ie
w

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
er

vi
ce

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

f t
he

 
TI

C
 n

et
w

or
k.

   

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f T
IC

 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 In
fo

 in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

A
ug

us
t 2

00
2 

  C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
TI

C
 o

pe
ni

ng
 

tim
es

, l
ev

el
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
, 

co
m

pa
tib

ilit
y 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

, l
ev

el
 o

f r
et

ai
l 

fo
cu

s 
et

c.
 R

ol
es

 o
f 

TI
C

’s
 a

s 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
is

su
e 

fo
r t

he
 n

ew
 

To
ur

is
m

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

G
ro

up
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

. 

  TI
C

 re
vi

ew
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 
Th

e 
TI

C
 in

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 

ha
s 

be
en

 re
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
 

IN
FO

, i
nv

es
tig

at
io

ns
 

ar
e 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
re

 th
e 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

  K
in

gt
on

 
an

d 
Le

db
ur

y 
TI

C
’s

 in
to

 
IN

FO
. 

1.
15

 R
ev

ie
w

  l
oc

at
io

ns
, 

Le
as

e,
 ru

nn
in

g 
co

st
s 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
t T

IC
’s

 

E
ns

ur
e 

m
os

t c
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

2 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 A

N
D

 
R

ES
C

O
U

R
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
lia

is
in

g 
w

ith
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
er

vi
ce

. 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 R

en
ts

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 

Le
om

in
st

er
 a

nd
 R

os
s-

on
-W

ye
 w

ith
 b

ud
ge

t 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 
m

ee
t s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
co

st
s.

 H
er

ef
or

d 
TI

C
 

re
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 2
00

3.
  

In
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

of
 re

-lo
ca

tio
n 

to
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
si

te
.  

1.
16

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
t 

Q
ue

en
sw

oo
d 

TI
C

 in
 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

. 

A
ss

es
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 th
e 

TI
C

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
m

on
th

s 
of

 
op

en
in

g 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
2 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

To
 a

ss
es

s 
co

st
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

. 
B

ud
ge

t £
9,

00
0 

fo
r 

20
02

/0
3.

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
sa

le
s 

at
 th

e 
TI

C
 e

na
bl

ed
 e

xt
en

de
d 

op
en

in
g 

ho
ur

s,
 n

ow
 

E
as

te
r t

o 
C

hr
is

tm
as

 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r. 

59



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
17

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
t K

in
gt

on
 

TI
C

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

st
in

g 
fo

r a
 

C
ou

nc
il-

ru
n 

TI
C

, a
nd

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f C

ou
nc

il’s
 g

ra
nt

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n.
 

A
ss

es
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 T
IC

 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

ne
tw

or
ke

d 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

 ra
ng

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 m

on
th

s 
of

 
op

en
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 p
ub

lic
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
2 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

To
 a

ss
es

s 
co

st
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

. 
A

w
ai

t o
ut

co
m

e 
of

 In
fo

 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

(K
in

gt
on

) R
ev

ie
w

. 

1.
18

 D
ev

is
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

pr
od

uc
t a

w
ar

en
es

s 
fo

r a
ll 

to
ur

is
m

 s
ta

ff,
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
pa

ck
ag

es
 a

nd
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 to

ur
is

m
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. 

W
el

l-i
nf

or
m

ed
 s

ta
ff 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
02

. 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

on
go

in
g.

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
tra

in
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 to
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
To

ur
is

m
 F

or
um

s,
 

th
ro

ug
h 

To
ur

is
m

 
M

at
te

rs
, O

pe
n 

E
ve

ni
ng

s 
at

 th
e 

TI
C

s 
an

d 
a 

st
af

f 
fa

m
ilia

ris
at

io
n 

tri
p 

on
ce

 
a 

ye
ar

.  
1.

19
 O

ng
oi

ng
 C

us
to

m
er

 
C

ar
e 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r a

ll 
st

af
f, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 T

IC
/fr

on
t l

in
e 

st
af

f. 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
us

to
m

er
 c

ar
e 

fo
r u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 

tra
in

in
g 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
be

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

A
ll 

ne
w

 T
IC

 s
ta

ff 
un

de
rta

ke
 W

el
co

m
e 

H
os

t, 
C

en
tra

l I
nd

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y.
 

1.
20

 R
ev

ie
w

 T
IC

 o
pe

ni
ng

 
ho

ur
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
  

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

w
he

re
ve

r p
os

si
bl

e.
 R

ev
ie

w
 

co
st

s 
fo

r e
xt

en
de

d 
op

en
in

g 
to

 c
ov

er
 S

un
da

ys
 

an
d 

B
an

k 
H

ol
id

ay
s.

  

A
 c

on
si

st
en

t s
er

vi
ce

. 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

2 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

C
os

t i
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r a
ll 

TI
C

s.
 N

ee
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

lo
ca

l d
em

an
d 

va
ria

tio
ns

 
an

d 
cu

st
om

er
 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

. 

TI
C

 R
ev

ie
w

. T
he

 T
IC

 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill 

hi
gh

lig
ht

 th
e 

de
m

an
ds

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ar
ea

 
an

d 
th

e 
st

af
fin

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

  

60



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
21

 R
ev

ie
w

 c
os

ts
 fo

r 
st

af
fin

g 
TI

C
’s

 w
ith

 p
ai

d 
st

af
f. 

C
os

t/b
en

ef
it 

A
na

ly
si

s 
as

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

to
 T

IC
 R

ev
ie

w
A

ug
us

t 2
00

2.
 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

C
os

ts
 to

 b
e 

as
ce

rta
in

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 re
so

ur
ce

 fo
r 

st
af

fin
g 

en
ab

le
d 

pa
id

 
st

af
f a

t L
eo

m
in

st
er

 a
nd

 
B

ro
m

ya
rd

, b
ut

 s
til

l w
ith

 
so

m
e 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r 
su

pp
or

t. 
1.

22
 E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
V

ol
un

te
er

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 

fo
rm

al
is

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t 
be

tw
ee

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
V

ol
un

te
er

s 
fo

r t
ra

in
in

g,
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 

Fo
rm

al
 c

on
tra

ct
 

be
tw

ee
n 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 a

nd
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

V
ol

un
te

er
 In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
– 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

2 
   C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
Li

nk
s 

w
ith

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 V
ol

un
te

er
 

P
ol

ic
y.

 

   C
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 th
e 

In
tra

ne
t r

e 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

. 

1.
23

 C
on

du
ct

 J
ob

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

n 
to

ur
is

m
 s

ta
ff 

to
 re

du
ce

 
di

sp
ar

ity
 in

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

es
, 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 C

ou
nc

il-
w

id
e 

Jo
b 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

ex
er

ci
se

  

A
ut

um
n 

20
01

 
 C

O
M

P
LE

TE
 

R
ea

pp
ra

is
al

 o
f s

ta
ffi

ng
 

bu
dg

et
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 to

 
fit

 in
 w

ith
 C

ou
nc

il-
w

id
e 

sa
la

ry
 s

tru
ct

ur
e.

 

Jo
b 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 M
ay

 2
00

4.
  

Th
is

 h
as

 h
ar

m
on

iz
ed

 
th

e 
sa

la
rie

s 
pa

id
 to

 s
ta

ff 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

TI
C

’s
 

1.
24

 R
ev

ie
w

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 le
ve

ls
 

at
 T

IC
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
t 

Le
om

in
st

er
 a

nd
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

. 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 

pa
id

 m
em

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
in

 
ea

ch
 T

IC
 a

t a
ny

 p
oi

nt
 in

 
tim

e,
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 2

 s
ta

ff 
on

 
du

ty
. 

A
pr

il 
20

03
 

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

 

G
ra

nt
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
fro

m
 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
ns

 In
iti

at
iv

e 
fo

r t
he

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 p

os
t 

bu
t t

hi
s 

en
ds

 in
 M

ar
ch

 
20

05
. 

A
s 

po
in

t 1
.2

1 
pl

us
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ta

ff 
ho

ur
s 

at
 

B
ro

m
ya

rd
 th

ro
ug

h 
jo

in
in

g 
th

e 
In

fo
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 
H

ow
ev

er
, a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 

pr
es

su
re

 fo
r a

ll 
th

e 
TI

C
s 

to
 c

ov
er

 h
ol

id
ay

 
an

d 
si

ck
-le

av
e.

 

61



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

1.
25

 A
ll 

to
ur

is
m

 s
ta

ff 
to

 
re

ce
iv

e 
re

gu
la

r t
ra

in
in

g 
se

ss
io

ns
 o

n 
V

is
ito

r L
in

ks
. 

4 
V

is
ito

r L
in

ks
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

se
ss

io
ns

 p
er

 a
nn

um
. 

E
ac

h 
st

af
f m

em
be

r t
o 

at
te

nd
 a

t l
ea

st
 2

 o
f t

he
 4

 
se

ss
io

ns
. 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 

co
m

m
en

ce
 A

ut
um

n 
20

01
 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
co

st
s 

vi
a 

H
C

T 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

un
it?

  

O
n 

go
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
. T

IC
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

on
 V

is
ito

r L
in

ks
 o

n 
a 

on
e 

to
 o

ne
 b

as
is

. 

1.
26

 T
o 

re
vi

ew
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 T
IC

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 T

IC
 R

ev
ie

w
 2

00
2

A
ug

us
t 2

00
2 

  O
N

-G
O

IN
G

 A
N

D
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
N

EE
D

ED
 

TB
C

 
S

ec
ur

ed
 g

ra
nt

 fr
om

 
H

E
TB

 to
 u

pg
ra

de
 T

IC
 

IT
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t i
n 

20
03

  
H

ow
ev

er
, o

n-
go

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

 a
s 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ag

es
 a

nd
 n

ot
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
. 

1.
27

 T
o 

in
st

al
l e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
st

oc
k-

ta
ki

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 in

 a
ll 

TI
C

s 
to

 m
on

ito
r s

to
ck

 
le

ve
ls

. 

Ti
m

e-
sa

vi
ng

, e
ffi

ci
en

t 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
 m

et
ho

d 
fo

r r
ec

or
di

ng
 s

to
ck

, 
pe

rm
itt

in
g 

ye
ar

-r
ou

nd
 

re
co

rd
s 

to
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
. 

A
s 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
re

qu
ire

d.
 C

om
pl

et
e 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

O
N

-G
O

IN
G

 A
N

D
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
N

EE
D

ED
 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

os
t, 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 u

pg
ra

de
s 

ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

co
st

s,
 

le
as

es
 e

tc
.  

 

3 
S

ys
te

m
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

bu
t t

he
 c

os
t i

s 
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 w
ha

t 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  A

ll 
ce

nt
re

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

pu
t 

on
 to

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 a

t t
he

 
sa

m
e 

tim
e.

 

62



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

10
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

2.
  R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

/ 
 

 
 

 

2.
1 

S
ub

m
it 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

To
ur

is
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

fo
r e

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 to

 
su

pp
or

t v
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 T
ou

ris
m

 
U

ni
t. 

S
ub

m
it 

E
xp

re
ss

io
ns

 o
f 

In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 F
ul

l 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

2 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
to

 R
D

P
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
1 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

To
ur

is
m

 P
ro

m
ot

io
ns

 
bu

dg
et

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
ith

 li
ttl

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
2 

fu
nd

in
g 

en
ds

 o
n 

31
st
 M

ar
ch

 
20

05
.  

A
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 
R

R
Z 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

2.
2 

R
ev

ie
w

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

ro
le

 in
 th

e 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 &
 W

ye
 

V
al

le
y 

V
is

ito
r G

ui
de

 

To
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 
an

d 
ex

it 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

in
 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 A
P

H
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
02

 
  C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

C
ur

re
nt

 c
om

m
itm

en
t b

y 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

£4
5,

00
0 

pe
r a

nn
um

 

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
gu

id
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

To
ur

is
m

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 w
ith

 a
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 

gu
id

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 

20
03

 w
ith

 A
P

H
 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 th

e 
le

ad
 

pa
rtn

er
. 

2.
3 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 b
ud

ge
t 

fo
r f

ur
th

er
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
nt

o 
IC

T 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ith

in
 

th
e 

To
ur

is
m

 S
er

vi
ce

 

IC
T 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n 

w
ith

 c
os

tin
gs

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 

V
is

ito
r L

in
ks

 

B
ud

ge
t A

llo
ca

tio
n 

A
pr

il 
20

02
 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

C
os

ts
 to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

.  
Y

ea
r 1

 £
7,

50
0.

 
To

 id
en

tif
y 

ne
w

 s
ou

rc
es

 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

af
te

r M
ar

ch
 

20
05

. 

2.
4 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r 

on
go

in
g 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

IC
s.

 

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 w
or

ks
 fo

r 
TI

C
’s

 a
s 

A
pp

en
di

x 
to

 
TI

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 

A
ut

um
n 

20
02

 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

In
cr

ea
se

 b
ud

ge
t 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r T
IC

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t. 

Q
ue

en
sw

oo
d 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 M

ar
ch

 
20

04
 fu

nd
ed

 e
xt

er
na

lly
, 

bu
t a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 is

su
e.

 

63



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

11
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

2.
5 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

co
m

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r T
IC

s 
an

d 
to

 
pe

rm
it 

TI
C

s 
to

 re
in

ve
st

 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

nc
om

e 
in

to
 T

IC
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

in
iti

at
iv

es
. 

S
et

 n
ew

 in
co

m
e 

ta
rg

et
s.

E
st

ab
lis

h 
w

is
h 

lis
t o

f 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

in
co

m
e 

le
ve

ls
. 

M
ar

ch
/A

pr
il 

20
02

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

S
el

f-f
in

an
ci

ng
 

R
ea

lig
n 

Tr
ad

in
g 

A
cc

ou
nt

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r i

nc
om

e 
to

 
re

in
ve

st
 in

to
 T

IC
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

m
on

ito
r c

on
si

de
rin

g 
th

e 
se

as
on

al
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 
to

ur
is

m
.  

2.
6 

 T
o 

id
en

tif
y 

fu
rth

er
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r r

ai
si

ng
 

re
ve

nu
e 

in
 T

IC
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

ta
il,

 a
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

in
co

m
e.

 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
pp

en
di

x 
to

 
TI

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 

A
ut

um
n 

20
02

 
 O

N
-G

O
IN

G
 

G
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
fu

nd
s 

w
ill 

as
si

st
 in

 
un

de
rp

in
ni

ng
 

op
er

at
io

na
l c

os
ts

. 
£1

8,
00

0.
 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t o

f R
os

s 
TI

C
 in

 2
00

2 
an

d 
Q

ue
en

sw
oo

d 
TI

C
 in

 
20

04
.  

In
cr

ea
se

 s
al

e 
of

 
w

in
do

w
 s

pa
ce

 a
t 

su
ita

bl
e 

TI
C

s.
 

64



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

3.
  C

O
N

SU
LT

A
TI

O
N

/ 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

 
 

 
 

 

3.
1 

C
on

du
ct

 a
nn

ua
l 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
 

us
er

s.
 

Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 to

 9
00

 
co

nt
ac

ts
, m

ai
le

d 
w

ith
 

‘T
ou

ris
m

 M
at

te
rs

’ i
n 

O
ct

ob
er

  

A
nn

ua
l, 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
20

01
 (e

xe
rc

is
e 

fir
st

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

20
00

) 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

M
ai

nl
y 

st
af

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 in

 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
 

re
sp

on
se

s.
 

A
nn

ua
l o

cc
up

an
cy

 
su

rv
ey

. 2
00

2 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
 li

nk
ed

 to
 

To
ur

is
m

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 
20

03
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

. 
3.

2 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
in

te
r-

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l c

on
ta

ct
 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

n 
to

ur
is

m
 is

su
es

. 

To
ur

is
m

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

pr
om

ot
ed

 b
y 

ot
he

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

op
ic

 
of

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

as
 a

 
re

gu
la

r f
ea

tu
re

 o
f s

ta
ff 

m
ee

tin
gs

. 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

  O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

N
o 

co
st

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
R

eg
ul

ar
  c

on
ta

ct
 w

ith
 

P
R

O
W

/C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 / 
P

R
/A

rc
ha

eo
lo

gy
 / 

H
er

ita
ge

 / 
A

rts
. N

ew
 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 p
la

n 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ith
 

A
rc

hi
ve

s.
  

3.
3 

To
 o

rg
an

is
es

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 s

em
in

ar
/fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

p 
fo

r C
ou

nc
il 

M
em

be
rs

 o
n 

to
ur

is
m

 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 fe
el

 w
el

l 
in

fo
rm

ed
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
 

Fi
rs

t F
oc

us
 G

ro
up

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 

20
02

 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 
an

d 
no

m
in

al
 v

en
ue

 
ex

pe
ns

es
. 

A
nn

ua
l S

pr
in

g 
an

d 
A

ut
um

n 
To

ur
is

m
 

Fo
ru

m
s.

  T
ou

ris
m

 
S

em
in

ar
 fo

r o
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

m
em

be
rs

 h
el

d 
in

 M
ay

 
20

04
. 

3.
4 

Te
am

 e
xe

rc
is

es
 fo

r a
ll 

to
ur

is
m

 s
ta

ff 
to

 a
id

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n/
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

. 

To
ur

is
m

 s
ta

ff 
to

 fe
el

 
co

nf
id

en
t a

nd
 

co
m

pe
te

nt
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r 
w

or
k.

 T
o 

pe
rm

it 
st

af
f t

o 
ta

ke
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

cu
ltu

re
 o

f c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
en

ab
le

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

fo
rw

ar
d-

th
in

ki
ng

. 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 te

am
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t t

o 
be

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

02
. 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

N
o 

co
st

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
A

nn
ua

l T
ou

ris
m

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

D
ay

 fo
r s

ta
ff;

 
C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ta

ff 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e;
  

M
on

th
ly

 T
ou

ris
m

 T
ea

m
 

B
rie

f. 

65



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

3.
5 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

qu
al

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

To
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 in

st
al

lin
g 

th
e 

Lo
op

 
sy

st
em

 in
to

 T
IC

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 h
ea

rin
g 

im
pa

irm
en

ts
.  

To
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 v

is
ito

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 B
ra

ille
 

an
d 

la
rg

e 
pr

in
t, 

lia
is

in
g 

w
ith

 R
oy

al
 N

at
io

na
l 

C
ol

le
ge

 fo
r t

he
 B

lin
d,

 
H

er
ef

or
d.

 
A

ll 
TI

C
 s

ta
ff 

to
 a

tte
nd

 
th

e 
‘W

el
co

m
e 

A
ll’ 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
A

w
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g.
 

To
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
A

cc
es

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

to
 a

ll 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l m
at

er
ia

l. 
  

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
to

 T
IC

 
R

ev
ie

w
, A

ug
us

t 2
00

2 
   O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

H
ig

hl
y 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
ac

tio
n 

bu
t i

s 
on

er
ou

s 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 s
ta

ff 
tim

e 
– 

ne
ed

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ff 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

A
cc

es
s 

de
ta

ils
 fo

r a
ll 

en
tri

es
 in

 A
ttr

ac
tio

ns
 

Le
af

le
t. 

 O
n-

go
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 T
IC

s,
 

st
ill 

an
 is

su
e 

w
ith

 R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

 T
IC

. 
 A

ut
um

n 
Fo

ru
m

 2
00

2 
an

d 
S

pr
in

g 
Fo

ru
m

 2
00

3 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 D

D
A

. 
 B

as
ic

 s
ig

n-
la

ng
ua

ge
 fo

r 
TI

C
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

4.
 

 D
is

ab
ilit

y 
A

ud
its

 a
nd

 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

fo
r p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

pa
id

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
To

ur
is

m
 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
 La

rg
e 

pr
in

t p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 
A

ll 
ne

w
 s

ta
ff 

at
te

nd
 

W
el

co
m

e 
A

ll 
tra

in
in

g.
 

Lo
op

 s
ys

te
m

 in
st

al
le

d 
in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
TI

C
. 

 

66



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

14
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

3.
6 

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 In
te

re
st

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 lo

ca
l a

re
a 

To
ur

is
m

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

. 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
re

gu
la

r 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 a
t T

ou
ris

m
 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

. 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

Fo
cu

s 
G

ro
up

s 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

H
ig

hl
y 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
ac

tio
n 

bu
t i

s 
on

er
ou

s 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 s
ta

ff 
tim

e 
– 

ne
ed

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ff 

re
so

ur
ce

s 

W
id

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

on
 

th
e 

To
ur

is
m

 C
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
G

ro
up

.  
P

lu
s 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
(s

ee
 

po
in

t 3
.1

) 
3.

7 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 ‘W

ho
’s

 
W

ho
’ c

on
ta

ct
 li

st
 o

f 
To

ur
is

m
 s

ta
ff,

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
ar

ea
s 

of
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

  t
o 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
lin

ks
. 

Li
st

/F
ac

t S
he

et
 

pr
od

uc
ed

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
1 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

E
xi

st
in

g 
st

af
f t

im
e.

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 b
ut

 n
ee

ds
 

co
ns

ta
nt

 u
pd

at
in

g,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
on

 w
eb

 s
ite

.  
 

4.
 P

A
R

TN
ER

SH
IP

 
W

O
R

K
IN

G
 

 
 

 
 

4.
1 

(S
ee

 1
.2

 a
bo

ve
 –

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 T
ou

ris
m

 
(M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
))

 

 
 

 
S

ee
 1

.2
 a

nd
 3

.6
. 

4.
2 

D
ev

el
op

 re
gu

la
r l

in
ks

 
w

ith
 c

ro
ss

-b
or

de
r 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 (S
hr

op
sh

ire
, 

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

, 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

, P
ow

ys
, 

M
on

m
ou

th
sh

ire
) t

o 
ac

tio
n 

m
at

te
rs

 o
f j

oi
nt

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

2 
M

ee
tin

gs
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 
Fi

rs
t m

ee
tin

g 
he

ld
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

2 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

E
xi

st
in

g 
S

ta
ff 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
A

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t r

eg
io

na
l 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 c
lo

se
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 a
nd

 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

. 

4.
3 

R
en

ew
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 M
an

ag
er

s/
Fo

ru
m

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
pr

om
ot

io
ns

. 

TC
M

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t 
To

ur
is

m
 T

ea
m

 m
ee

tin
gs

M
on

th
ly

, f
ro

m
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
1 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

N
on

e 
R

eg
ul

ar
 m

ee
tin

gs
 d

id
 

no
t p

ro
ve

 th
at

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
so

 re
gu

la
r c

on
ta

ct
 a

nd
 

fe
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t 

To
w

ns
 P

la
ns

. 

67



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

15
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

4.
4 

Im
pr

ov
e 

lin
ks

 w
ith

 ‘I
nf

o 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’ t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 
us

er
s 

on
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

Jo
in

ed
 u

p 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. H

ol
d 

A
nn

ua
l 

‘In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
’ 

m
ee

tin
g 

(fi
rs

t a
nd

 o
nl

y 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

as
 h

el
d 

by
 

to
ur

is
m

 u
ni

t i
n 

19
98

). 

A
nn

ua
l M

ee
tin

g 
– 

co
m

m
en

ce
 S

pr
in

g 
20

02
 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 
 

N
o 

co
st

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
. S

ta
ff 

tim
e 

on
ly

. 
In

 p
la

ce
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 in

 
B

ro
m

ya
rd

, a
nd

 
pr

op
os

ed
 jo

in
t s

ite
s 

in
 

Le
db

ur
y 

an
d 

K
in

gt
on

. 

4.
5 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
in

te
re

st
 in

 to
ur

is
m

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
de

liv
er

y 
to

 m
ee

t l
oc

al
 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
fo

cu
s 

fu
nd

in
g.

  

To
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 lo
ca

l 
tra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

be
 in

 
a 

po
si

tio
n 

to
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
ca

re
er

s 
in

 th
e 

in
du

st
ry

 

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

tra
in

in
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
t i

nt
o 

fu
nd

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 A

ut
um

n 
20

01
 a

nd
 o

ng
oi

ng
 to

 
20

06
 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
To

ur
is

m
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t. 

P
ar

t o
f T

ou
ris

m
 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 
w

ith
 c

lo
se

r l
in

ks
 to

 
ot

he
r a

ge
nc

ie
s 

de
liv

er
in

g 
tra

in
in

g.
 

4.
6 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

S
er

vi
ce

 
Le

ve
l A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

H
ea

rt 
of

 E
ng

la
nd

 T
ou

ris
t 

B
oa

rd
 in

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
se

rv
ic

es
 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

A
pr

il 
20

02
 

  O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

N
on

e.
  

H
E

TB
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 e
xi

st
s 

as
 a

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n.

  H
ea

rt 
of

 
E

ng
la

nd
 T

ou
ris

m
 

de
liv

er
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 A
W

M
.  

Id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
 

D
es

tin
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 

68



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

5.
 S

TR
A

TE
G

Y 
A

N
D

 
PO

LI
C

Y 
 

 
 

 

5.
1 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
on

 fr
om

 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 

R
ev

ie
w

 to
 d

ev
is

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

to
 a

cc
om

pa
ny

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

To
ur

is
m

 S
tra

te
gy

 

To
 h

av
e 

a 
w

or
ki

ng
 

do
cu

m
en

t t
o 

as
si

st
 in

 
pr

io
rit

is
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 fu

nd
in

g.
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
2 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

S
ta

ff 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

To
ur

is
m

 S
tra

te
gy

 –
  

la
un

ch
ed

 D
ec

 2
00

2.
 

   

5.
2 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 to
ur

is
m

 
st

ra
te

gy
/p

ol
ic

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
ac

ro
ss

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ge
nc

y 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n.

 

S
tre

ng
th

en
 a

nd
 

cr
ys

ta
llis

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 p

os
iti

on
 o

n 
to

ur
is

m
 p

ol
ic

y.
 C

ro
ss

-
re

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 to

ur
is

m
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 in

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 
re

gi
on

al
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t b

y 
st

af
f. 

To
ur

is
m

 S
tra

te
gy

 
co

ve
rs

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 a
 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

.  
In

pu
t 

in
to

 c
or

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 
pl

an
s.

 

5.
3 

To
 re

vi
ew

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 
po

lic
y 

on
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
an

d 
co

nd
uc

tin
g 

bo
ok

in
gs

 in
 

in
sp

ec
te

d-
on

ly
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n,

 in
 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 

re
gi

on
al

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 

To
 is

su
e 

a 
po

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t o
n 

th
e 

‘in
sp

ec
te

d-
on

ly
’ p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 th
ro

ug
h 

C
ab

in
et

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 

ev
er

y 
3 

ye
ar

s.
 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 A

pr
il 

20
02

 
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 A
pr

il 
20

05
 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

N
on

e.
 

R
eg

io
na

lly
 s

til
l a

 d
riv

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
sp

ec
te

d-
on

ly
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n.
 

5.
4 

To
 ra

is
e 

th
e 

pr
of

ile
 o

f 
to

ur
is

m
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 
w

ith
in

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
its

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
nt

o 
a 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

Fo
r t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

To
ur

is
m

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

or
 S

tra
te

gy
 G

ro
up

 to
 

m
ak

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
 

D
C

M
S

. 

TB
C

. F
or

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

at
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 F

or
um

s.
 

  C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

N
on

e 
F&

M
 a

nd
 S

ep
t.1

1th
 

ha
ve

 ra
is

ed
 th

e 
pr

of
ile

 
of

 th
e 

to
ur

is
m

 s
ec

to
r 

an
d 

sh
ow

n 
th

e 
m

aj
or

 
ec

on
om

ic
 im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 th

is
 in

du
st

ry
.  

69



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

17
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

6.
  M

A
R

K
ET

IN
G

 A
N

D
 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 
 

 
 

 

6.
1 

C
on

du
ct

 B
ra

nd
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 in

du
st

ry
 s

ec
to

rs
 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. R

ei
nf

or
ce

 
di

st
in

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 

O
rg

an
is

e 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

on
 

br
an

di
ng

. 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

ne
w

/s
tro

ng
 

br
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 im
ag

er
y.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f l
og

os
, 

st
ra

pl
in

es
 a

nd
 id

en
tit

y.
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
2 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

Fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 
B

ra
nd

in
g 

re
se

ar
ch

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

6.
2 

 R
ed

es
ig

n 
fa

m
ily

 o
f 

lit
er

at
ur

e 
 

N
ew

 d
es

ig
n 

m
at

er
ia

l 
an

d 
gu

id
el

in
es

 o
n 

us
ag

e.
 

P
ro

m
ot

io
na

l l
ite

ra
tu

re
 

fo
r 2

00
3.

 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

  

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

In
 p

ro
ce

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
To

ur
is

m
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

6.
3 

 T
o 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
ro

le
, 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

 
m

ar
ke

ts
 o

f t
he

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 &
 W

ye
 

V
al

le
y 

V
is

ito
r G

ui
de

 in
 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 A
P

H
. 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 lo

ng
 

te
rm

  a
nd

 e
xi

t s
tra

te
gi

es
 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 

G
ui

de
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
G

ui
de

 li
nk

s 
in

 w
ith

 a
ll 

ot
he

r m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

. 

Fo
cu

s 
G

ro
up

 h
el

d 
by

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
2.

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

N
on

e.
 

P
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 a
nd

 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

. 

6.
4 

 ‘T
ou

ris
m

 M
at

te
rs

’ 
N

ew
sl

et
te

r –
 R

ev
ie

w
 

co
nt

en
t, 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

su
pp

or
t. 

B
et

te
r i

nf
or

m
ed

 lo
ca

l 
to

ur
is

m
 in

du
st

ry
 a

nd
 

ro
ut

e 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
2 

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

C
ur

re
nt

 b
ud

ge
t 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 C
a.

 £
1,

50
0 

+ 
pa

rtn
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
an

d 
in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d.

 
6 

is
su

es
 p

er
 a

nn
um

. 

N
ew

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

fo
rm

at
 

re
vi

se
d 

fro
m

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

3 

70



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

18
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

6.
5 

 R
ev

ie
w

 O
ve

rs
ea

s 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

A
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 
bu

dg
et

s 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 p
ro

m
ot

io
ns

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 re

gi
on

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
2 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

ED
  

E
nh

an
ce

 b
ud

ge
t f

or
 

ov
er

se
as

 m
ar

ke
tin

g.
 

B
ud

ge
t i

nc
re

as
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
To

ur
is

m
 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 

6.
6 

R
ev

ie
w

 L
ite

ra
tu

re
 

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

m
et

ho
ds

 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n,

 
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

in
te

llig
en

ce
 to

 ta
rg

et
 

pl
ac

em
en

t. 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 W

ye
 

V
al

le
y 

V
is

ito
r G

ui
de

 
di

sc
us

si
on

s,
 S

pr
in

g 
20

02
 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 A
N

D
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IS

SU
E 

 

E
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s.
 

N
ew

 c
om

pa
ny

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

To
ur

is
m

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 
fu

nd
in

g 
no

t o
n 

go
in

g.
 

6.
7 

R
ev

ie
w

 p
ol

ic
y 

of
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 

E
ng

lis
h/

W
el

sh
 li

te
ra

tu
re

 
vi

a 
TI

C
s 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 W

el
sh

 T
IC

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

st
at

em
en

t a
s 

A
pp

en
di

x 
to

 T
IC

 R
ev

ie
w

A
ut

um
n 

20
02

 
 O

N
 G

O
IN

G
 

N
on

e.
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
W

el
sh

 T
IC

s 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 a
tte

nd
 s

w
ap

 s
ho

p 
in

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

4.
 

6.
8 

R
ev

ie
w

 s
up

po
rt 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r m

ar
ke

tin
g 

Fe
st

iv
al

s 
an

d 
E

ve
nt

s.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 

fe
st

iv
al

s 
an

d 
ev

en
ts

 
or

ga
ni

se
rs

 a
nd

 ra
is

e 
pr

of
ile

 o
f t

he
 e

ve
nt

s.
 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
2 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
2.

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ta
ff 

tim
e.

 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 fe
st

iv
al

s 
an

d 
ev

en
ts

 g
ui

de
 

th
ro

ug
h 

To
ur

is
m

 
E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

71



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

19
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

6.
9 

Fo
rm

al
is

e 
‘c

or
po

ra
te

’ 
(i.

e.
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
To

ur
is

m
) p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

st
yl

e 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
s 

on
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

 
at

te
nd

an
ce

  

To
 d

ev
el

op
 b

ra
nd

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
‘H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’ b
ra

nd
 

an
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

ca
re

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

re
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
2 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ta
ff 

tim
e 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

P
ar

t o
f n

ew
 b

ra
nd

in
g 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 o

f l
ite

ra
tu

re
. 

6.
10

 T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ro
le

 
of

 th
e 

TI
C

s 
as

 
‘H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
A

m
ba

ss
ad

or
s’

 in
 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
th

e 
To

ur
is

m
 

U
ni

t’s
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
. 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l e
ve

nt
s 

st
ag

ed
 in

 T
IC

s 
to

 
co

in
ci

de
 w

ith
 T

ou
ris

m
 

U
ni

t c
am

pa
ig

ns
.  

 

C
om

m
en

ce
 E

as
te

r 2
00

2
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

B
ud

ge
t a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 

sp
ec

ia
l p

ro
m

ot
io

ns
 fo

r 
TI

C
’s

.  

To
ur

is
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

C
en

tre
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

To
ur

is
m

 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
, 

e.
g 

W
al

ki
ng

 F
es

tiv
al

, 
O

kt
ob

er
fe

st
. ,

 G
ou

rm
et

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 e
tc

.  

72



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
K

EY
 T

A
SK

S 
 

O
U

TP
U

TS
 &

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 

 
TI

M
ET

A
B

LE
 

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PL
IC

A
TI

O
N

S/
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

SI
X 

M
O

N
TH

 U
PD

A
TE

  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

7.
  R

ES
EA

R
C

H
 A

N
D

   
  

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
 

 
 

 

7.
1 

 Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
To

ur
is

m
 U

ni
t’s

 re
se

ar
ch

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 fa

ct
 s

he
et

s 
an

d 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 re
se

ar
ch

 
da

ta
 o

n 
w

eb
si

te
s.

 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 M

ar
ke

t 
in

te
llig

en
ce

 to
 a

id
 th

e 
in

du
st

ry
 in

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
pr

il 
20

02
 

 O
N

 G
O

IN
G

 

S
ta

ff 
tim

e 
to

 re
se

ar
ch

 
an

d 
in

pu
t o

nt
o 

w
eb

si
te

s,
 

pa
pe

r f
or

m
at

 e
tc

. 

 E
 b

ul
le

tin
 n

ew
sl

et
te

r 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 th

e 
tra

de
 

an
d 

to
 o

ve
r 1

50
0 

vi
si

to
rs

 o
n 

a 
bi

 m
on

th
ly

 
ba

si
s.

 
7.

2 
 T

o 
st

an
da

rd
is

e 
th

e 
w

ay
 in

 w
hi

ch
 v

is
ito

r 
st

at
is

tic
s 

ar
e 

co
lla

te
d 

at
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

IC
s 

to
 

en
ab

le
 a

 m
or

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
. 

C
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
A

pr
il 

20
02

 
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

N
on

e.
 

A
ll 

S
ta

tis
tic

s 
co

lla
te

d 
vi

a 
a 

cl
ic

ke
r s

ys
te

m
 

an
d 

re
co

rd
ed

 o
n 

a 
da

ily
 

ba
si

s.
 

  St
af

f 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 2

00
0/

01
 

20
06

 T
ar

ge
ts

   

20
03

 / 
4 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

2.
66

 
3.

5 
4.

5 
FT

E
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t s
ta

ff 
(P

rin
ci

pa
l T

ou
ris

m
 O

ffi
ce

r, 
To

ur
is

m
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
r, 

V
is

ito
r &

 P
ro

m
ot

io
ns

 O
ffi

ce
r, 

To
ur

is
m

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
; T

ou
ris

m
 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r)
 

0.
5 

0.
5 

1 
C

on
tra

ct
 (V

is
ito

r L
in

ks
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
) 

3.
5 

1.
5 

2.
5 

FT
E

 s
ta

ff 
pa

id
 fo

r t
hr

ou
gh

 e
xt

er
na

l f
un

di
ng

 (T
ou

ris
m

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

of
fic

er
, 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

A
ss

t, 
To

ur
is

m
 A

ss
t (

P
/T

), 
 

73



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

21
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 31

 
35

 
   

31
 

TI
C

 s
ta

ff 
(p

ai
d)

 o
f w

hi
ch

 4
 fu

ll 
tim

e 

42
 

40
 

20
  

TI
C

 s
ta

ff 
(v

ol
un

te
er

s)
  (

16
 a

t K
in

gt
on

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 d
ire

ct
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

H
C

) 
42

.5
%

 
TB

C
 

64
%

 
P

ai
d 

st
af

f a
s 

a 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 to

ta
l s

ta
ff 

91
62

 
TB

C
 

56
00

 
N

um
be

r o
f h

ou
rs

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 v
ol

un
te

er
 s

ta
ff 

pe
r a

nn
um

 
 St

af
f t

ur
no

ve
r 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

20
00

/0
1 

20
06

 
Ta

rg
et

s 
 

20
03

/4
 

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 

1.
98

%
 

1.
5%

 
1.

%
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
ta

ff 
tu

rn
ov

er
 fo

r 1
2 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
40

 
35

 
35

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 n

um
be

r o
f s

ta
ff 

em
pl

oy
ed

  (
m

ax
. 4

5 
du

rin
g 

S
um

m
er

 m
on

th
s)

 
10

 
20

%
 

tu
rn

ov
er

 
2 

Le
av

er
s 

= 
25

%
 tu

rn
ov

er
 

 
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 (1

99
9/

20
00

) 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 2

00
0/

1 
20

06
 T

ar
ge

ts
 

 
20

03
/4

 
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

£3
19

,4
76

 
TB

C
 

£5
50

,0
05

 
*T

ot
al

 s
pe

nd
 o

n 
to

ur
is

m
 (i

nc
lu

de
s 

H
E

TB
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
£3

,6
79

) –
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
in

 
sp

en
d 

ha
ve

 c
ha

ng
ed

 
£1

.8
8 

TB
C

 
£3

.1
0 

S
pe

nd
 o

n 
to

ur
is

m
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
£4

52
,7

39
 (+

E
ur

o)
 

TB
C

 
£1

,2
50

,0
00

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
fu

nd
in

g)
 

G
ro

ss
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
in

co
m

e 

 

74



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

22
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  In

co
m

e 
(1

99
9/

20
00

) 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

20
00

/0
1 

20
06

 T
ar

ge
ts

 
  

20
03

/4
 

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 

£1
33

,2
63

 
£2

00
,0

00
 

£1
00

,4
16

 
TI

C
’s

 (p
ro

fit
 is

 th
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 e
le

m
en

t d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 s
to

ck
 a

nd
 o

nl
y 

co
m

m
is

si
on

) 
£2

4,
65

0 
£3

5,
00

0 
N

A
 

 ‘M
ar

ke
tin

g 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’ i
nc

om
e 

fo
r 2

00
1 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r 
£1

63
,1

06
 

£1
50

,0
00

 
£1

90
,0

00
 

E
xt

er
na

l r
ev

en
ue

 fu
nd

in
g 

 fo
r M

ar
ke

tin
g 

(E
ur

op
ea

n 
G

ra
nt

s,
 R

D
P

 e
tc

)*
 

£5
4,

59
2 

£3
0,

00
0 

£2
00

,0
00

 
E

xt
er

na
l r

ev
en

ue
 fu

nd
in

g 
 fo

r T
ra

in
in

g 
(E

ur
op

ea
n 

G
ra

nt
s,

 R
D

P
 e

tc
) (

Y
ea

r 
20

03
 &

 2
00

4)
* 

*N
B

: T
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
is

 to
 d

ec
re

as
e 

th
e 

de
pe

nd
en

cy
 u

po
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

in
g.

 
 Vi

si
to

rs
 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 
20

00
/0

1 

20
06

 T
ar

ge
ts

 
 

20
03

/4
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

25
8,

36
8 

30
0,

00
0 

36
1,

35
7 

V
is

ito
rs

 to
 T

IC
’s

 (i
n 

pe
rs

on
 o

nl
y 

– 
do

es
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
K

in
gt

on
) 

51
.5

p 
60

p 
27

p 
A

ve
ra

ge
 s

pe
nd

 p
er

 v
is

ito
r f

or
 e

ac
h 

TI
C

 
 En

qu
iri

es
 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 
20

00
/0

1 

20
06

 T
ar

ge
ts

 
 

20
03

/4
 

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 

54
,2

22
 

60
,0

00
 

33
,7

76
 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
to

 T
IC

’s
 (Y

ea
r 2

00
3)

 
4,

60
6 

4,
80

0 
37

25
 

W
rit

te
n 

to
 T

IC
’s

 (Y
ea

r 2
00

3,
) (

in
cl

ud
e 

e 
m

ai
l) 

11
27

 
15

00
 

13
74

 
Lo

ca
l A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
B

oo
ki

ng
s 

(Y
ea

r 2
00

0)
 

 

75



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

23
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 
20

00
/0

1 

20
06

 T
ar

ge
ts

 
  

20
03

/4
 

  

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

35
.0

4%
 

37
%

 
37

.0
1%

 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
to

 B
oo

ki
ng

s 
ra

te
 fo

r m
ai

n 
co

ns
um

er
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

(Y
ea

r 
20

03
) 

£2
.7

9 
£2

.7
9 

£2
.5

4 
C

os
t p

er
 re

sp
on

se
 fo

r m
ai

n 
U

K
 c

on
su

m
er

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
34

4 
38

0 
41

7 
N

um
be

r o
f p

ai
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

en
tri

es
 in

 V
is

ito
r G

ui
de

 
55

,0
00

 
55

,0
00

 
55

,0
00

 
P

rin
t r

un
 –

 A
ttr

ac
tio

ns
 M

ap
 (2

00
0 

ed
iti

on
) 

10
8 

11
0 

13
5 

N
um

be
r o

f e
nt

rie
s 

in
 A

ttr
ac

tio
ns

 g
ui

de
 a

nd
 b

ed
ro

om
 b

ro
w

se
r (

20
03

 e
di

tio
n)

 
 Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

 Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 2
00

0/
01

 
20

06
 

Ta
rg

et
s 

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 

88
6 

80
0 

80
0 

N
um

be
r o

f t
ra

in
ee

s/
be

ne
fic

ia
rie

s 
(y

ea
r 2

00
0,

 e
xc

lu
de

s 
Fo

ru
m

s)
 

 
 

 
Pu

bl
ic

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
/E

xt
er

na
l r

el
at

io
ns

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 2

00
0/

01
 

20
06

 
Ta

rg
et

s 
   

20
03

/3
4 

   

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

6 
7 

6 
N

um
be

r o
f n

et
w

or
ke

d 
TI

C
’s

 
35

.8
 

35
.8

 
35

.8
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 T
IC

 w
ee

kl
y 

op
en

in
g 

ho
ur

s 
6 

6 
0 

S
el

f-s
er

vi
ce

 V
is

ito
r L

in
ks

 k
io

sk
s 

(a
ll 

re
m

ov
ed

 a
s 

di
d 

no
t w

or
k)

 
18

 
18

 
18

 
N

um
be

r o
f m

an
ne

d 
To

ur
is

t I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
P

oi
nt

s 
19

 
19

 
19

 
U

nm
an

ne
d 

To
ur

is
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

P
oi

nt
s 

8 
8 

17
 

N
ew

sl
et

te
rs

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 lo

ca
l i

nd
us

try
 (5

 p
rin

te
d 

an
d 

12
 v

ia
 e

 m
ai

l) 
19

2 
20

0 
20

0 
N

um
be

r o
f a

tte
nd

ee
s 

at
 T

ou
ris

m
 F

or
um

s 
 

76



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

m
 S

er
vi

ce
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
20

01
 - 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

24
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Lo

ca
l T

ou
ris

m
 In

du
st

ry
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

r t
re

nd
 d

at
a 

is
 a

ls
o 

co
lle

ct
ed

 a
s 

m
ar

ke
t r

es
ea

rc
h 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

ui
de

 fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
ss

ue
s.

 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 2

00
0/

01
 

20
06

 T
ar

ge
ts

 
   

20
03

 
V

is
ito

r S
ur

ve
y 

  

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

£1
29

,0
77

,0
00

 
£1

40
,0

00
,0

00
 

£1
29

,0
77

,0
00

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 V

is
ito

r S
pe

nd
 

4.
56

 m
 

4.
56

 m
 

8.
6 

m
 

N
um

be
r o

f V
is

ito
rs

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
50

,0
00

 
50

,0
00

 
50

,0
00

 
N

um
be

r o
f O

ve
rs

ea
s 

vi
si

to
rs

 
34

50
 

35
00

 
62

25
 

D
ire

ct
 J

ob
s 

11
60

 
12

00
 

16
65

 
In

di
re

ct
 jo

bs
 

9%
 

9%
 

5%
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 o

ve
rs

ea
s 

ov
er

ni
gh

t t
rip

s 
So

ur
ce

: 1
99

8/
9 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nt

y 
To

ur
is

m
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
PA

 C
am

br
id

ge
 M

od
el

)  
50

%
 

55
%

 
48

 -5
8%

 
S

er
vi

ce
d 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

R
oo

m
 O

cc
up

an
cy

 (y
ea

r 2
00

3)
 (t

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
ha

s 
no

t 
re

co
ve

re
d 

si
nc

e 
fo

ot
 a

nd
 m

ou
th

) 
So

ur
ce

: H
ET

B 
Se

rv
ic

ed
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
O

cc
up

an
cy

 S
ur

ve
y,

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
3 

 

77



78


